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ABOUT THE REPORT

The annual report of JS Investments Limited Is designed to provide a comprehensive overview of the Company's
operations, financial performance, corporate governance and business strategies to our valued internal and external
stakeholders.

The report, including financial statements, complies with all applicable statutory and regulatory requirements articulated in
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017, Provisions of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations), Directives issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP); and Integrated Reporting (IR) Framework by the International Integrated
Reporting Council (IIRC).

It covers the reporting period from January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2022, including subsequent events till its issuance to
shareholders. The report contains information that stakeholders of the Company would reasonably require to make an

informed assessment of its operations, financial performance, business strategies, key performance indicators, value chain,
business model, competitive analysis and prospects for the future.

It delineates the respective roles and responsibilities of the Company towards implementing an Integrated Reporting (IR)
framework to enhance accountability, transparency, credibility and to establish business strategies. It is a principle-based
integrated reporting framework that promotes a more cohesive and efficient approach to corporate reporting to improve the
quality of information and clearly articulate the financial and non-financial information for its stakeholders. It further
enhances accountability and stewardship for the broad capital base (financial, tangible, intellectual, human, social and
natural) and promotes an understanding of interdependencies.

This annual report contains the following elements:

. Organizational Overview and External Environment
= Corporate Governance
. Financial Position & Performance

% Additional Information
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COMPANY PROFILE

JS Investments Limited (JSIL) (estd. 1995) is the oldest private sector Asset Management Company in Pakistan. Our
founding partners were INVESCO PLC (formerly known as AMVESCAP PLC) — Europe's largest investment Management
house & International Finance Corporation (IFC) — the private sector arm of the World Bank Group. JSIL is a subsidiary of

JS Bank, one of the fastest growing banks in Pakistan with a rapidly expanding network of 277 branches across the country.

JSIL offers a wide range of investment products including Mutual Funds, Voluntary Pension Schemes, and Separately
Managed Accounts (SMAs) to cater to the needs of individual and institutional investors,

The company has played a key role in defining the standards of Asset Management Industry in Pakistan.

JSIL is licensed by SECP to provide "Asset Management”, “Investment Advisory”, "REIT Management”, “Private Equity and
Venture Capital Fund Management" services. In addition, the Company also acts as Pension Fund Manager under the VPS

Rule.

JsIL is a member of Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.
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Rating Agency: PACRA
Type: Asset Manager-Capital Markets

RATING

Outlook: Stable

ZJSinvestments

LICENSES

SECP has granted renewed license No. AMCW/42/JSIL/AMS/06/2022, dated May 14, 2022 to JS Investments Limited
under Rule 5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003 as amended through
S.R.O.1131 (1) 2007, S.R.0.271(1)/2010, S.R.O 570(1)/2012 and S.R.O 1002(i)/2015 (the "Rules"), to undertake Asset
Management Services.

Inves

Advisory

SECP has granted renewed license No. AMCW/41/JSIL/IAM0/2022, dated May 14, 2022 to JS Investments Limited under
Rule 5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003 as amended through
S.R.0.1131 (1) 2007, S.R.0.271(1)2010, S.R.0 570(1)/2012 and S.R.0 1002(i}2015 (the "Rules"), to undertake Investment
Advisory Services.

SECP has granted Registration No. SECP/PW/Reg-03/2007, dated January 8, 2007 to JS Investments Limited under Rule
5(2) of the Voluntary Pension System Rules 2005, to undertake business as a Pension Fund Manager.

SECP has granted license No. SECP/JSIL/PEandVC/03/2021 dated September 15, 2021 to JS Investments Limited under
Rule 5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003 as amended through
S.R.0.1131 (1) 2007, S.R.0.271(1)2010, S.R.0 570(1)/2012 and S.R.O 1002(i}/2015 (the "Rules"), to carry out Private
Equity and Venture Capital Fund Management Services.

SECP has granted license No. SCD/PRDD/REIT/JSILI2020/02, dated July 28, 2020 to JS Investments Limited under Rule
5 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules 2003tc carry out REIT Management
Services,
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GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE KEY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
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MUTUAL FUNDS — SHARIAH-COMPLAINT

JS ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

JS Islamic Daily Dividend Fund is an Open-ended Shariah Compliant
Money Market Scheme that prmarily invests in Shariah Compliant
Authorized Investments. The Fund makes daily payout to the unit
holders, which can also be re-invested, net of applicable taxes! fees/

J5 Islamic Income Fund is an open-end Shariah Compliant Income
Fund that provides fixed income based returns and potential for
capital growth, The Fund offers enhanced returns exceeding Bank
deposit rates over the medium term, along with the flexibility to invest

oA

ZIS

Better investments for o Setter Future!

ALTERNATIVE ASSETS

JS RENTAL REIT FUND

X

JS MOTION PICTURE FUND (@
N7

J5 Rental REIT Fund [JSRRF) is a perpetual, closed-end, conventional
rental Schame to achieve reqular and stable retums through investments
in a fully developed portfolio of sustainable developments and yielding
assets in the real estate sector in Pakistan. JS Rental REIT seeks

JS Motion Picture Fund (JSMPF) was established in Pakistan as a
Private Fund constituted as a closed-end unit trust under the Trust
Act, 1882 The Fund has an i dia-orientad i

theme and invests in the securities of existing or start-up mation

charges. or redeem your money at your convenience. JSIIF is an ideal
Ksuluﬁun for short/medium-term savings.,

JS ISLAMIC FUND

J5 Islamic Fund is an open-end Shariah Compliant Equity Fund that
invests in high quality Shariah compliant stocks. The Fund offers
high returns via the stock market and entails the risk associated with
hese markels.

INVESTMENT PLANS

JS ISLAMIC HYBRID FUND OF FUNDS

JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds is an open-end Fund that invests in other Shariah compliant Mutusl Funds. The Fund maintains a diversified portfolio
of Equity, Balanced, Fixed Income and Money Market Funds, offering a number of Investment Plans so you can choose your perfect fit depending
on your risk & retum needs.

EXCHANGE TRADED FUNDS

JS MOMENTUM FACTOR EXCHANGE TRADED FUND

J5Momentum Factor Exchange Traded Fund (JSMFETF}is a Smart Beta ETF. Smart Beta consiructs indexes based on citeria other than market capitalization,
JSMFETF is designed to frack tha | it results of JS M Factor Index (JSMFI), composed of PSX large and mid. italization stocks exhibiti
talatiwaiy higher price momentum.
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long-tarm growth 01 the Net Asset Value and dividend distribution for its
unit holders by investing in a commercial real estate portfolic and

anerﬁting rental income. K

J5 Pension Savings Fund (JSPSF) is a fund under Voluntary Pension JS Islamic Pension Savings Fund (JSIPSF) provides a reliable and
System (VPS) that provides a regular income after retirement. The fund Shariah compliant source of savings and retirement income fo individuals.
aims to ensure optimum retums and reasonable safety of capital while JSIPSF provides individuals flexibility in confributions and portfolio
alowng flexible portfolio customization through allocation in equity, customization fhrough the allocation of such confributions ameng Shariah
income and money market sub-funds depending on your reti P equity, income and money market sub-funds suited to the
goals, age and risk appetite. specific need and risk profile of the investor.

INVESTMENT ADVISORY

pictures and audio productions of unlisted companies,

JS PENSION SAVINGS FUND

JS ISLAMIC PENSION 2
SAVING FUND

A SEPARATELY MANAGED ACCOUNT

A Separately Managed Account (SMA) is a customized investment salution far high-net-warth individuals and large An SMA is a
portfolio of ir ged on the s behalf by a i Investment Manager. The portfolio is customized according to customers’
Qnancial requirements and risk tolerance,
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DIGITALIZATION

Our teams have also worked strenuously on integrating smarter digital solutions making investments more accessible in today's
digital age.

DIGITAL CUSTOMER ONBOARDING:

JS Investments Limited offers three major digital customer
onboarding solutions for a seamless and convenient
investor joumey.

® JSIL Sahulat Sarmayakari Account and Regular Digital
Account offers potential investors the facility to open
their online account to invest in Mutual Funds.

® JSIL Sehal Account through Zindigi App offers investors
a quick and easy sign up allowing them to invest in
low-risk mutual funds. —

VPS DIGITAL ONBOARDING

JS Investments Limited offers a completely digital
onboarding system for Pension Funds for both
individual customers and corporates. The platform
offers both Pension Fund and Voluntary Pension Fund
Schemes with access to a customized customer
dashboard.

JSIL WHATSAPP BOT

JS Investments Limited offers its customers the
convenience of a self-service WhatsApp Bol, helping
them resoclve their investment related queries in a single
message. The JSIL WhatsApp Bot offers customers
access to their account, investment and tax statements.
They can also calculate their tax savings, identify their risk = s et
profile, leam about different funds, access Fund Manager g
Reports and book an appointment with our customer
service representative.

S 5 1 it st o
bl | g 14

% 14 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 .

#JSinvestments

SMA PORTAL

JS Investments Limited SMA Portal is a premium Digital
Wealth Management Solution that allows SMA clients
real-time access to their portfolio information. Market
information to evaluate investments and build a portfolio
with Dynamic Investment Allocation between Equity and
Fixed Income. Clients also have access to all other
value-added features, such as downloading reports and
statements and making new investments, redemptions,
and fund transfers.

Hettar (nvestments for o Setter Future!

INVESTOR PORTAL & APP

JS Investments Limited Investor Portal and App is a
complete digital ecosystem allowing investors to
manage their investments from anywhere, anytime. It
will enable them to view their account portfolic, invest in
funds, request redemptions, transfer funds, and
download their account statements and relevant
reports.
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To be the preferred choice

of every investor, offering

diverse and innovative

investment solutions




To establish a leadership position
in bringing more investable asset
classes and innovative products,
while managing them with

prudence and excellence




INNOVATION DIVERSITY

2,
LUl
-
<
>

INTEGRITY Z i EXCELLENCE




rporate success depend f 1o g E sible mann
dopted the 'The Asset Manager ' formulated by the CFA Centre for Finan
Market Integrity for the purposes of stren COrpors wernance, enhancing compliance culture, and promoting
ethical and professional standards among empl e code s core values all employees, especially fund
managers, are required to follow when performing business operations or when interacting with colleagues, clients and
other stakeholders. It also plays an important role in guiding the Company's efforts to inspire and maintain the trust and
cenfidence of all its stakeholders.

The Code of Conduct and business ethics are essential for every organization. It spells out the behavior expected from
employees, reflecting faimess, transparency and accountability. It guides staff members to conduct themselves with
honesty and integrity in all actions representing the organization.

We are committed to conduct our business in accordance with applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations as defined by our
Regulators. We alwi abides by e tandards and considers it to be a key business priority. Our Code of Efl
requires that appropriate standards of behavior are followed in letter and spirit.

OPERATING STRUCTURE

The management of daily business operations and ancillary matters is delegated by the Board of Directors through their
exercise of authority. Management's role is to implement decisions, develop sfrategies, and create operational plans in
accordance with the obj 2s approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors convenes quarterly meetings
and as necessary to assess the company's performance and makes future plans. At these meetings. management provides
updates on business activities and solicits dback from the Board. Board Committe: rucial role in ensuri

transparent reporting processes, setting poli Oro ures, and overseeing sp The leadership ensures
that each department is led by competent and experienced professionals who instill a culture of commitment and growth
within their teams. All levels of management are trained in detail regarding standard operating pe nd procedures.

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

#JSinvestments
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BROAD POLICY OBJECTIVES

y 7

Value tion for
clients sustainable
basis.

ZJSinvestments

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES FROM PREVIOUS YEARS

During the year the Company focused on further diversifying its product suite and continued with its tradition of product

innovation.

e JS Momentum Factor Exchange Traded Fund (JSMFETF) was launched in January 2022 as the first smart beta ETF
in Pakistan, which focuses on PSX large and medium-capitalization stocks exhibiting relatively higher price
momentum.

e  As another first, JS Microfinance Sector Fund (JSMFSF) was launched in May 2022, which aims to provide income
enhancement by investing in prime quality microfinance sector products.

e JS Government Securities Fund (JSGSF) was launched in July 2022 to generate competitive returns with low risk by
primarily investing in Government Securities.

¢ JS Rental REIT (JSRR) was launched in June 2022 with the objective of investing in REIT projects directly or through
special purpose vehicle (SPV) to generate income [ returns for unit holders.

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned JS Investments Limited a rating of 'AM2+ with 'stable

cutlook' dated December 27, 2022, which is an improvement from the previous rating of AM2 with ‘positive outlook’. The

rating denotes high management quality.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 25 "&
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ORGANOGRAM

Board of Directors

Human Resources &
. Remuneration committee

Executive & Risk

_ Management Committee

Chief Executive Officer

Audit Committee

Chief Investment Head of Information
Officer L Technology

Network
& Security

Software
Development

I' Research & Product ° IT Operations

Development

w System Administration
& Desktop Support

Country Head
L Business Development

Morth Region

C Central Region

> South Region

Marketing

Head of Wealth
Management

Investment
Advisory

" Chief Financial

Officer

Finance

Settlement

" Chief Compliance

& Risk Officer

» Compliance - Customer g
Experiencs Unit

. Risk § Human

_ Management 1 Resources 4

#Z)Sinvestments

Chief Operating Officer
& Company Secretary

L Internal Audit

» Administration |

Operations 1
MSP& Registrar |
Services)

=4 AM!.. i Product
~ Compliance Structuring

Secretarial 1
. Affairs /

= Internal Audit
e Outsourced Co. BDO

*Head of Internal Audit administratively reports to the CEQ
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SWOT ANALYSIS

SWOT analysis is an enhanced framework that enables an organization to witness and forecast its strategies in the form of
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats. This framework portrays internal and external factors that affect the
organization and assists in mitigating risks, enhancing key strengths, addressing limitations, and finding possible ways to
grow in terms of opportunities.

STRENGTH: WEAKNESS:

1. Concentrated Asset Under Management.
2. Clientele targeted towards a singular segment.

under

Following is the
brief SWOT
analysis of the
Company.

THREATS:

is on 'Vc'Fundtn'emtea healthy
rlong term

aapﬂarsudmsmmf insurance and pension
funds | H'naltarnab asset class.
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COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE AND

MARKET POSITIONING

JSIL operates in a very competitive landscape within the financial industry. Hence, we regularly monitor Porter's Five Forces
to help us analyze the industry’s business environment, allowing us to fine-tune existing strategies and develop

forward-looking ones.

Threat of

Substitute Products

Traditional investment
avenues in direct
investment in stocks,
commodities,
currencies and real
estate are omnipresent,
creating an impression
of substitutes for asset
management products.
However, the advice on
asset allocation and
security selection while
managing overall risk
draws a fine line
between direct
investing and mutual
funds/ dedicated or
specialized investment
solutions. Therefore,
the threat of substitute
products is higher as far
as addressing savings,
and investment needs
are concerned. JSIL
believes product
innovation is
instrumental in meeting
clients' investment
goals and objectives.

Threat of New

Entrants

The critical barriers to
entry are the presence
of a large network of
bank-based AMCs with
an extensive
distribution network,
strict licensing, capital,
legal requirements and
substantial advertising
requirements for brand
development. These
barriers, as mentioned
earlier, keep operating
costs high and make
economies of scale
reasonably challenging
to achieve in the
industry. However,
switching costs are
relatively low for chients.
Therefore highly
competitive pricing
remains the norm for
retaining existing clients
and attracting potential
clients.

Bargaining Power of

Buyers/ Customers

The Investment
Management industry
has become highly
commoditized, where
investors are focused
closely on costs. The
insignificant cost
involved in transferring
investments within
AMCs results in a
highly competitive
environment leading to
a relatively strong level
of bargaining power for
clients. JSIL's
commitment to
ermbracing technological
advancements and
differentiation in terms
of a diversified portfolio
of products across
multiple assel classes
is geared toward
building strong brand
loyalty.

Bargaining Power
of Suppliers

Assel management is
integral to the services
industry in channeling
public savings into the
country's financial
markets. Technology
firms, Recruitment
agencies, Accounting
and Legal entities, and
settlement and
custodial service
providers for managing
day-to-day operations
constitute the suppliers
of an AMC. A
reasonable number of
suppliers and products
and services are fairly
standardized. Moreover,
while the industry
remains their important
customer, they also do
not pose a plausible
threat per se regarding
forward integration into
the industry.

Hette Funture!

Intensity of
Competitive Rivalry

There is stiff competition
in the industry regarding
investment yields and
customer service,
Consequently, this
eventually transmits
through a thin profit
margin for AMCs to
remain competitive and
gain market share,
strengthening the rivalry
among existing players
within the industry. At
the same time, robust
industry growth has
allowed competitors to
focus on building upon
their unique business
strategies instead of
capturing market share
from each other. With a
legacy of being the
oldest player in the
private sector, JSIL
vigorously aims to
expand its client base by
reaching out to the
target market's
untapped segment and
continuing to reinforce
innovative investment
ideas.

P

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 29 %




#JS investments

MILESTONES

Established as the
First Private Sector
AMC of Pakistan

Introduced the First
Asset Allocation Fund —
JS Aggressive Asset
Allocation Fund

2015
- w

Merger of JSAAAF and

JS KSE 30 with and into

JS Large CapFund (JS!

AMC's rating Partnership

updated to AM2+ Agreement with
500 Global to
support start ups
in Pakistan

LCF)

Launched JS
Rental REIT
Fund

Launched Pakistan's First

" Balanced Fund - Unit Trust

of Pakistan (UTP)

Introduced the First
Index Fund — JS
KSE 30 Index Fund

Announced First Buy
Back of its shares

Launched the first
microfinance sector
fund JS Microfinance
Sector Fund

Launched Pakistan's
First Open End Shariah
Compliant Fund — J$
Islamic Fund

Became the first AMC
to get listed on Pakistan
Stock Exchange

Launched Mobile App
and Web Portal for
online transactions

Introduced the First Smart
Beta ETF, JS Momentum
Factor ETF

Launched Abamco
Composite Fund -
The Largest Closed
End Fund

2007

LUV |

Launched the
First Capital
Protected Fund

Merger of JS Value
Fund with and into
JS Growth Fund

Launched Sahulat
Sarmayakari Account for
online account opening

#JSinvestments
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

MR. SULEMAN LALANI

Mr. Suleman Lalani is a Non-Executive Director and Chairman on the Board of JS Investments Limited. He
is presently the Vice-Chairman of Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited (“JSCL").

Before his elevation to the position of Vice-Chairman, he served JSCL as its Chief Executive Officer for
more than a decade. Prior to joining JSCL, he was Executive Director Finance & Operations and Company
Secretary of JS Investments Limited where he served as CFO and Company Secretary for seven years.

Mr. Lalani had started his career with JSCL in 1992 where he worked for over eight years. In 2000 he was promoted to the
position of Chief Operating Officer of Jahangir Siddiqui Investment Bank Limited, a subsidiary of JSCL. In January 2002 he
joined The First MicroFinance Bank Limited as its Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary.

Mr. Lalani is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and has more than 30 years of
experience in the financial services sector. He has also completed the Board Development Series Certificate Program
conducted by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.

Other Directorships:

1.Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited
Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited
Shahtaj Sugar Mills Limited

TRG Pakistan Limited

MS. IFFAT ZEHRA MANKANI

Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani is the Chief Executive Officer of JS Investments Limited. She has a globally
diversified experience of over two decades in public and private markets across multiple asset classes.
During her work experiences in the capital markets in Pakistan, she held various senior strategy and
research roles, both on the buy and sell side of the industry, including the National Investment Trust, JS
Investments Limited and BMA Asset Management Company Limited.

As a sell-side analyst, Ms. Iffat was often guoted in the financial press and was well known for her accuracy as a strategist.
In her buy-side roles as Chief Investment Officer at JS Investments (2005-2007) and BMA Asset Management (2007-2011),
she successfully implemented a disciplined asset and risk allocation process, resulting in a consistent top-guartile
performance for funds under management. These included some pioneering products in the industry, such as the asset
allocation fund, capital protected fund, an index fund, an offshore listed hedge fund and separately managed accounts.

Before rejoining JS Investments, she worked in the Deals Advisory team at PwC Canada, where she made significant
contributions in the space of complex financial instruments and private debt valuations, helping steer the business toward
sustainable growth. Moreover, she has also held diversified roles in the risk management groups of leading Canadian
Banks (Bank of Montreal and CIBC) associated with their guants and trading risk oversight teams. In addition to making
numerous value additions as a Risk Manager of equity, fixed income and structured product desk, she spearheaded
bank-wide regulatory and infrastructure projects and initiatives.

She holds a Master of Finance from the Rotman School of Management (University of Toronto) and a Master of Business
Administration from the Institute of Business Administration, Karachi.
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MR. HASAN SHAHID

Mr. Hasan Shahid is a Non-Executive Director of JS Investments Limited. He comes with over twenty
years of experience in the fields of finance, auditing, internal controls evaluation and re-designing,
compliance and taxation. Hasan Shahid is a Company Secretary and Head of Legal at JS Bank Limited
where he joined in November 2019.

Prior to JS Bank, he served as the Director Finance and Company Secretary at Jahangir Siddiqui & Co
Ltd. (JSCL), where he had joined as Manager Finance in 2006. He also served as Chief Financial Officer of JSCL from 2012
to 2018. His portfolio encompasses a wide range of matters ranging from financial management, reporting, audit, taxation,
compliance with laws and other secretarial matlers.

Mr. Hasan is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and Pakistan Institute of Public
Financial Accountants (PIPFA) and holds a Master's degree in Economics from University of Karachi,

He is member on the boards of following entities:

. JS Engineering Investments (Private) Limited
. Future Trust — Trustee & Treasurer

MR. MIRZA M. SADEED HASSAN BARLAS

Mirza Sadeed Barlas is a Non-Executive Director of JS Investments Limited. He has more than thirty-three
years of experience out of which the banking experience spans over 26 years. He worked for seven years
with Siemens in its Medical Division, after getting an Electrical Engineering degree from UET, Lahore.

‘ ' Thereafter, he did his MBA from Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS), in 1993 and was
awarded a Silver Medal with distinction in Statistics and Quantitative Methods.

He started his banking career in Corporate Banking and worked in Commercial Banking, SME Banking, Digital &
Microfinancing during his career in local and multinational banks. The major part of his career has been in risk where he has
worked in all facets of Risk Management covering Credit Risk, Operational Risk, Basel, Market Risk, Consumer Risk, etc.
He has served in local and foreign banks such as MCB Bank, United Bank Limited (UBL), Barclays, Telenor Microfinance
Bank, and JS Bank (JSBL) in the capacity of CRO and Group Head Risk, etc. His longest stay was with UBL, for about
seventeen years.

Mr. Sadeed also served as a member of the Board of Directors of UBL Funds Managers, a subsidiary of UBL bank from
2015 to 2018 as a UBL nominee director and chaired the UBL Fund’s board risk and compliance committee as well, during
this assignment. During his work period at UBL, he was assigned an additional responsibility of Group Head Risk
International looking after the risk of UBL branches in foreign countries covering UAE, Qatar, Bahrain, etc.

Currently, he is working as Chief Risk Officer at JS Bank Limited, looking after the risk management functions, including
consumer risk, ERM, market risk, operational risk, risk policies and information security.

MR. ATIF SALIM MALIK

Mr. Atif S. Malik has joined as a Non-Executive Director. He has over twenty-six years of diversified
experience encompassing areas including retail banking and microfinance, strategy development and
implementation, business transformation and MSME Development. He has successfully developed new
. business verticals in the financial space, both internationally and within Pakistan, and has a proven track
record of business turnaround. He has worked with financial institutions including Standard Chartered
Bank, Al-Rajhi Bank-KSA and HBL Microfinance Bank.

Mr. Atif has also worked in East and Southem Africa, heading microfinance banks. He was a core member of the team that
established Small and Medium Enterprise Development Authority- Pakistan (SMEDA). He started his career from LUMS as
a Research Associate where he published research primarily on the MSME sector. He is currently heading Retail Banking
at JS Bank Limited, looking after branch banking, SME financing, Private banking and Consumer lending.
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MS. AISHA FARIEL SALAHUDDIN

Ms. Aisha Fariel is an Independent Director of JS Investments Limited. Her career comprises of diverse

experience in journalism, investment banking, energy policy advisory and entrepreneurship. She is the

founder and Chief Executive Officer of UpTrade, a unique bartering model enabling off-grid farmers to use

their livestock as currency in developing rural economies. She has over 10 years of international

- experience in energy finance, project development and energy policy. Her geographical experience spans

aver Indonesia, Egypt, Pakistan, and the Middle East, North Africa region where she has advised governments and private
sector or energy policy, pricing and reforms.

Ms. Fariel has done her MPA from Columbia University, New York and BSc from Lahore University of Management
Sciences, Lahore.

Other Directorships:
Pakistan Paper Products Limited

MS. MEDIHA KAMAL AFSAR

Ms. Mediha Afsar joined as an Independent Director of JS Investments Limited. She comes with a

background in Brand Strategy, Economics and International Marketing, having graduated frem the Londen

School of Economics and Regents Business School London, where she was the top position holder in her

| MSc and BA Hons degrees. She has experience of working with Financial and FMCG institutions in

: advising and managing their marketing departments, brand activations, communication campaigns and

product lines where she developed SOPS, audited & eslablished streamlined processes for transparency, efficacy and

coordination. She has also managed a diversified portfolio of dairy products under a leading flagship premium brand in

Pakistan, with an annual turnover in excess of USD 90 million. Ms. Mediha has also set examination questions for future

bankers at the Institute of Bankers Pakistan and founded a freelance consultancy service to provide holistic brand
communication frameworks, revival strategies & idea generation for clients in need of boosting brand health.

MR. FAROOQ AHMED MALIK

Mr. Farooq Ahmed Malik joined as an Independent Director of JS Investments Limited. He is a
businessperson and a retired BP.22 government official with combined experience of B6 years while
working simultaneously in both government service and personal business. He served as Commissioner
and Regional Commissioner in various capacities. He is an expert in law especially tax laws and had
trained individuals in all areas of income tax.

He is also the founder of Interwood Mobel (Pvt) Ltd, established in 1974. Interwood Mebel is a home-grown state of the art
manufacturing setup in Pakistan and considered a top brand in Doors, Wardrobes, Kitchens, Offices, Home Furniture etc.
The company, with its technology, design and infrastructure can be compared with any international brand.

In 1966, Mr. Malik obtained his degree in Masters of Economics from University of Punjab. In 1968, he appeared in CSS
and was selected in the Internal Revenue Service. Due to hard-work, persistence and exceptional performance record, he
was promoted to the highest grade i.e. 22 (the grade of Federal Secretary), served as Commissioner, Chief Commissioner,
Member Information Technology FBR & Director General Training etc. Trained about 1000 officers of the IR service.

Other Directorship:
Interwood Mobel (Pvt) Limited
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Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Iffat joined JS Investments in April 2021. She brings over 20
years of global experienca in both public & private markets
across multiple asset classes. She was associated with JSIL
during 2004-2007 as the CIO & in a similar capacity later with
BMA Funds from 2007-2012. In her most recent role, Ms. Iffat
worked with the Deals Advisory team at PwC Canada and
worked for over six years with leading Canadian Banks in
Capital Markets Risk Management Quantitative teams. Ms. Iffat
halds MFin. from Rotman School (UofT) & MBA from the
Institute of Business Administration.

Mr. Hussain Haider
Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Hussain has two decades of global experience in investment
management, equity advisory & private banking for clients spread
across three continents. Having worked across financial markets,
private & public sector institutions and family offices in both buy &
sell-side roles; he is adept at delivering actionable portfolio
allocation ideas. Recently, Mr. Hussain was associated with JS
Global Capital as Chief Strategist, winning prestigious CFA awards
and AsiaMoney polls during this time. An |BA graduate, a CFA
Charter holder and a CIPM Certificant, Mr. Hussain also served as
Director on the Board of a local CFA Society in Canada.

Mr. Khawar Igbal
Chief Operating Officer & Company Secretary

Mr. Khawar holds 30+ years of experience during which he
introduced changes to bring in efficiencies, simplifications &
improvement in the overall quality of his functions. He joined
JSIL in 2005 as a Finance Manager. He went on to serve as
CFO from 2012 to 2019 & is currently working as COO &
Company Secretary. His current role includes design &
implement business operations, establish policies that
promote company culture and vision & oversee operations of
the company & other sacretarial matters,

Mr. Malik Zafar Javaid
Chief Compliance & Risk Officer

Mr. Malik Zafar Javaid carries over 29 years of experience of
capital market operations, Corporate Laws/ Regulations and
managing business operations. He has expertise in managing
business operations of the Financial Sector, Capital Markets,
Corporate Affairs, Business Transformations and digitization
of Customer On-boarding, Automation of KYC/AML system,
Payment Sciutions and back-office operations leading towards
efficient control and management. He has been part of JSILs
team since 2006,

£
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Ms. Samina Faisal
Country Head | Business Development

Ms. Samina brings with her more than 30 years of experience in
Treasury, Institutional & Corporate Sales, Wealth Management,
Prier to joining JSIL, she was managing her own consulting firm
— Litmus Consulting. In addition, she also provided technical
training to corporates and financial institutions in Pakistan,
During her career, she has been associated with international
banks such as Standard Chartered, Societe Generale Bank &
Citibank. Ms. Faisal holds a Master's degree from the Institute
of Business Administration, Karachi,

Mr. Abdul Basit Siddiqui
Head of Wealth Management

Mr. Basit has 20+ Years of Diversified Experience of segments
like Private Banking, Retail Branch Banking, Wealth
Management, Consumer Assets, Islamic Banking and
Emerging Banks. He has developed and managed substantial
porifolios, along with extensive exposure of Integration &
mergers of banks. Hold Various Top performers & Role Model
Awards. Prior to JSIL, he has worked with JS Bank, Standard
Chartered Bank, Samba Bank, Burj Bank, Emaan Islamic
Banking & Silk Bank. Mr. Basit holds various Top Performer &
Role Model Awards,

Mr. Zeeshan Khawar
Chief Finance Officar

Mr. Zeeshan has more than two decades of experience
covering the ambits of Financial Strategy, Project
Management, Internal and Extemal Audit and Risk
Management. He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant, Certified
Internal Auditor and Certified Internal Controls Auditor. He
previously worked at Al Ghurair Foods UAE and Sri Lanka as
CFO, Al-Ghurair Investments UAE as Group Audit and Risk
Head and State Audit Institution — UAE Mr. Zeeshan started
his career with KPMG and besides Pakistan has worked in UK
and UAE for 7 years.

Mr. Muhammad Anwer
Head of Information Technology

Mr. Anwer has been serving currently in the capacity of Head
of Information Technology at JS Investment and has a career
spanning over two decades both within the country and
overseas. He has implemented several key projects at
various organizations and is highly reputed within the
Information Technology Sector. Prior to JS Investments, Mr.
Anwer was associated with distinctive organizations and held
various management positions, and accumulated a stellar
track record of success.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The main goal of our corporate governance framewerk is to create an efficient set of incentive and monitoring mechanisms
to ensure that management is always aligned with our stakeholders’ best interests in a sustainable way. In order to achieve
this goal, we have set up decision-making bodies and institutionalized procedures to align management with our
meritocratic, performance-focused and long-term value creation culture.

Our intemal policies and procedures, which have been consistently effective since the Company was formed, are properly
documented and communicated. The Board aims to ensure the highest standards of corporate governance, accountability
and risk management. The main philosophy of our business, for the last 27 years, has been to create value for all
stakeholders through fair business practices. This translates into policies approved by the Board of Directors and
implemented throughout the Company to enhance the economic and social value for all stakeholders of the Company.
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ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CHAIRMAN

The Code of Corporate Governance ("Code”) requires that the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ"), by
whatever name called, shall not be the same person except where provided for under any other law. Further, the Chairman
shall be elected from amaong the non-executive directors of the listed company. The Code also requires that the Board of
Directors of a listed company shall clearly define the respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and CEQ.
Accordingly, the following description sets out a clear division between the roles and respensibilities of the Chairman and CEOQ.

The Chairman shall be responsible for the leadership of the board and shall ensure that the board plays an effective role in
fulfilling all its responsibilities. In particular, he shall:

1. Ensure effective functioning of the Board and committees of the Board in accordance with the highest standards of
corporate governance.

2. Ensure effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company to understand their views.

3. Ensure that such an agenda for the Company is set which primarily focus on strategy, performance, value creation and
accountability, and ensure that issues relevant to those areas are regularly considered by the Board.

4. Ensure that the Board discussions promote constructive debate and effective decision-making.

5. Ensure that the Board determines the nature and extent of the significant risks to the Company and that the Board
reviews regularly the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

6. Ensure that adequate time is allowed for discussion of all agenda items and to ensure that complex or contentious
issues are dealt with effectively, making sure in particular that nonexecutive directors have sufficient time to consider them.

7. Ensure that the Board members receive accurate, timely and clear information relating to agenda items and, in
particular, about the company’s performance.

8. Ensure that the Board delegate appropriate authority to the management.
9. Ensure that all Board committees as required under the Code are properly established, composed and effectively operated.

10. Ensure to build an effective Board, its composition and balance, diversity, including gender, and succession planning for
the Board and the appointment of senior executives.

11. Liaise with the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee regarding remuneration of the executive directors and
senior executives.

12. Ensure that the chairman of the Board Committees properly brief the Board regarding proceedings of their Committees.
13. Ensure proper disclosure in the annual report as required under the Code of Corporate Governance.

14. Ensure that the directors continually update their skills and the knowledge and familiarity with the company to fulfill their
role both on Board and Board Committees including in terms of the code of corporate governance.

15. Communicate with the Chief Executive Officer whenever need be.

16. Ensure that the performance and effectiveness of the Board, its committees and individual directors is formally
evaluated on an annual basis.

17. Establish a harmonious and open relationship with all executive directors and Chief Executive in particular providing
advice and support while respecting the executive responsibilities.

18. Ensure that conflict of interest issues is adequately addressed at Board level.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 41 Z




%JS investiments

Better investments for a Batter Future!

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for the leadership of the business, subject to the control and direction of
and the authorities delegated to him/her by the Board of Directors.

In particular, he/she shall:

1.

= © W N D m

i
12.
13.
14,

15.

Develop strategy for the Company for Board approval and ensure that approved corporate strategy is duly reflected
in the business.

In conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, develop an annual budget and the cash flow plan consistent with
approved corporate strategies, for presentation to the Board for approval. This should include developing processes
and structures to ensure that capital investment proposals are reviewed thoroughly, that associated risks are identified
and appropriate steps are taken to manage the risk to the business.

Be responsible to the Board for the performance of the Business consistent with approved business plans, corporate
strategies and policies and keep the Board as a whole updated on progress made against such approved plans,
corporate strategies and policies.

Plan human resourcing to ensure that the company has the capabilities and resources required to achieve its plans and
ensure that robust management succession and management development plans are in place and presented to the
Board from time to time.

Develop an organizational structure and establish processes and systems to ensure the efficient organization of resources.
Ensure that financial results, business strategies where appropriate, targets and milestones are placed before the Board.
Develop and promote effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders.

Ensure that business is conducted in accordance with the highest standards of corporate governance.

Ensure that the flow of information to the Board is accurate, timely and clear.

. Establish a close relationship of trust with the Chairman, reporting key developments to him in timely manner and

seeking advice and support as appropriate.

Ensure that the reporting lines within the Company are clearly established and are effective.

Ensure that proper procedures are in place to ensure compliance with all applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations.
Ensure an effective framework of internal controls including risk management in relation to all business activities.

Ensure that the company has a suitable system and policy for the timely and accurate disclosure of information in
accordance with regulatory requirements.

Ensure that conflict of interest issues is adequately addressed at management level.
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DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

The responsibility of implementing the strategies approved by the Board of Directors have been entrusted to the Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ) of the Company. The CEO and her management team has the primary responsibility for running of
the routine business operations of the Company in an effective and ethical manner in accordance with strategies and goals
set by Board. The management is also responsible to keep the Board informed about key risks and opportunities and
changes in operating environment.

Board's Annual Performance Evaluation

As required by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Board of JS Investments
Limited reviews its own performance annually undertaking a formal process of self-evaluation of performance of the Board
and its committees. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall performance and effectiveness is
measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the Company. The Board has recently
completed its annual self-evaluation for the year ended December 31, 2022. For the Purpose of Board evaluation, a
comprehensive criterion has been developed. The performance of the Board of JS Investments is evaluated regularly along
the following parameters, both at individual and team levels.

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of below mentioned parameters for the year were found
satisfactory.

1.

2.

Composition: Effectiveness in bringing in a mix of genders, talents, skill sets and rationale, Integrity, credibility,
trustworthiness and active participation of the members.

Leadership and Planning: The Board spends sufficient time on strategy formulation. Its ability to provide guidance and
direction to the Company, review adequacy of resources and follow-up and review of annual targets set by the
management.

. Effectiveness. All Board members understand and fulfill their responsibilities and comply with all relevant laws.

Significant issues are placed in front of the Board for consideration.

4. Accountability: The Board reviews potential risks, adequacy of internal controls and the risk management procedure.
5. Strategy and Performance: The Board devotes appropriate time to review the implementation of Company’s strategic

and financial plans.

. Organization: The Board meetings are structured to make effective use of the member's time and skills. Board members

receive appropriate supporting materials for timely decision-making.

. Ethics and Compliance: The Board ensures that professional standards and corporate values are put in place that

promote integrity for the Board, Senior Management and employees in the form of the Company's Code of Conduct. It
is notified of material communications received from governmental or regulatory agencies related to areas of any non
compliance.

. Risk Management: The Board has a sound process for identifying and regularly reviewing the Company's principal risks,

and makes necessary adjustments in light of changes to the internal and external environment.
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Directors’ Orientation

Every new member of the Board upon induction apprised about business operations, strategy, goals organizational / group
structure, subsidiaries, associates and other related parties, Company's visions etc. The training programs are also offered
to the Directors for enhancement of their skills. In addition to thal, in quarterly meetings, management acquaints the board
about new laws, amendments in existing laws, and changes in accounting standards introduced during the period.

Directors Training Program
The Company adopts a keen interest in the professional development of its Board members as per the requirements of the

Code of Corporate Governance. Five out of the eight Directors of the newly appointed Board are certified under the
Directors Training Program (DTP}.

Board Meetings Outside Pakistan
During the year, all the board meetings were convened in Pakistan by physical attendance and using video-link facility.

Use of External Search Consultant

The Board of the Company was constituted in December 2022 after the election of directors. At that time the Company used
the database of 'Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance' (PICG), an institute notified by the Commission, to appoint the
independent directors. However, during the year 2022, services of external search consultancy were not required.

Chairman’s Significant Commitments & Any Changes Thereto

Mr. Suleman Lalani is serving JS Investments Limited as the Chairman of the Board. With his long-dedicated career and
vast experience, he leads the Board with utmost dedication and commitment. The details of his other engagements are
mentioned in his profile.

Governance Practices Exceeding Legal Reguirements

The Company and its Board have always endeavored to adopt the best practices in industry and governance to ensure that
it remains the best-in-class. The Company has not only complied with mandatory legal compliances under the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2019, and the Companies Act 2017 and other applicable rules,
regulations and standards, but has also carried out the following activities in addition to the legal requirements.

+ Implementation of Health, Safety and Environment Policy for better and safe workplace environment for employees and
surrounded community.

+ The Company has adopted Integrated Reporting framework by reporting additional corporate and financial information
in this Annual Report to provide insight about the resources and relationships used and affected by the organization.

+ \Voluntary adoption of best reporting practices as prescribed by ICAP/ICMAP/ SAFA to make the Company’s Annual
Report more transparent.

+ As a measure to strengthen its risk governance, JSIL has built a very effective risk management structure providing
appropriate senior level oversight, segregation of functions and organizational checks and balances within a risk
conscious culture,
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

JSIL has a firm belief in the importance of giving back to society. As a result, the company has actively participated in various
initiatives led by Future Trust (FT), Mahvash and Jahangir Siddiqui Foundation (MJSF) and Fakhr-e-Imdad Foundation
(FIF), which are the three philanthropic arms of JS Group.

All of these entities are non-profit benevolent, philanthropic organizations established for the promotion, advancement and
encouragement of education, medical and healthcare, vocations, rehabilitation, protection and improvement of the
environment and general improvement of the socio-economic conditions of the people of Pakistan. Pakistan Centre for
Philanthropy (PCP) also certifies FT and FIF for its efforts in this arena.

Fakhr-e-imdad Foundation

Fakhr-e-Imdad Foundation (FIF) is a non-profit organization committed to serving peor and marginalized communities by
providing services at the grass root level. FIF has a high standard of governance and ethics, which is transparent and
engages with its stakeholders to promote trust and value. FIF's corporate social responsibility (CSR) strategy centers on
promoling education by setting objectives to improve access, enhance quality, and foster social inclusion.

Mahvash and Jahangir Siddiqui Foundation

Founded in 2003, Mahvash and Jahangir Siddiqui Foundation is a charitable, non-profit organization based in Pakistan and
run by several board members and senior management. The primary focus areas are healthcare, education, sustainable
development through social enterprise and humanitarian relief. MJSF targets the root causes of poverty in Pakistan and is
a major donor to numerous philanthropic endeavors nationwide.

Future Trust

Future Trust (the Trust) is a non-profit benevolent, philanthropic organization, a charitable trust constituted for the
promotion, advancement and encouragement of education, medical and healthcare, vocations, rehabilitation, protection
and improvement of the environment, self-help, microfinance, relief against poverty and general improvement of the
socio-economic conditions and living standards of the people of Pakistan.
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POLICY FRAMEWORK

POLICY ON DIVERSITY

JS Investments has a firm belief that diversity is an important factor in contributing to the company’s success as people with
unigue characteristics in terms of gender, knowledge, expertise and skills set add value and help the organization achieve
its goal. At JS Investments, inclusiveness is always promoted in the organization’s culture. Diversity and inclusion are the
foundation for the Company's code of conduct and culture where every member of board and employee comes from diverse
backgrounds, at an individual level, which includes capability. experiences, knowledge, and at a social level, which includes
race, ethnicity, culture, religion and others. The Company believes that a diverse workforce plays a very significant role in
enhancing efficiency at all levels of the organization.

BOARD’S POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board has approved a policy for transactions with related parties which is in line with applicable Laws and Standards.
The policy is intended to ensure timely approval, disclosure and reporting of related parties’ transactions. All transactions
with related parties during the year were placed before the Board Audit Committee, Board of Directors and General
Meetings, as the case may be for their review and approval.

POLICY FOR SAFETY RECORD OF COMPANY

The Company places significant emphasis on the safety and accessibility of its records, in compliance with applicable laws.
Physical files and documents are stored in designated cabinets and racks within record rooms to safeguard them against
physical and environmental damage. Regular backups of digital records are taken and stored both onsite and offsite. The
offsite backup tapes are maintained in secured and fire-resistant storage locations. To ensure the integrity of the backups,
periodic samples are restored.

INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE POLICY

JSIL believes that relations with investors are vital for the financial lifeline and substantial growth of the Company. Relations
with investors also reflect on the goodwill of JSIL. Itis, therefore, imperative to place an efficient and effective mechanism
for providing services to the investors and fo redress their grievances in accordance with law.

The Company has accordingly provided on its website, the necessary information about the Company, the directors,
auditors, independent share registrars, and the financial data for the current period and for the last six years.

The Company Secretary of JSIL is the primary contact on behalf of the Company to whom the investors can contact to
redress their grievances and resolve their issues. The management endeavors to investigate and resolve all the complaints
and queries of the investors to their utmost satisfaction. An investor who is not satisfied can also approach the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) complaint cell through interactive link provided on our website.

Our investor grievance policy is broadly based on the following principles:

+ Investors contacting in person, telephone, fax or email are received and their complaints are dealt in timely manner.
+ Each and every investor is treated fairly at all the times.

* Prompt, efficient and fair treatment is given to all the complaints and gueries of the investors.
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WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The objective of Whistle Blowing Policy is to receive, handle complaints in a fair and transparent manner and to provide
protection to the complainant against victimization, and disclosure of the number of such incidences reported to the Audit
Committee. The policy addresses the concerns of Company's staff and other stakeholders about irregularities, impropriety,
financial malpractices, frauds & forgeries, personnel harassment and improper conduct or wrongdoing without any fear of
reprisal or adverse consequences in order to strengthen the Company's reputation and its overall performance in order to
safeguard the interest of customers.

Whistle Blowing Policy is applicable to all its employees working across the country and other stakeholders that includes
but not limited to customers, venders, brokers elc.

Employees are encouraged to report concerns directly to immediate supervisors or head of the department or where
impractical the whistle blower shall report the matter to the head of HR, the CEO or directly to the Board's Audit Committee
without fear of reprisal.

The policy also encourages stakeholders to raise concern against any unsatisfactory inquiry or proceedings. The whistle
blower shall report the matter in writing to the person who acknowledges the same. Therefore, anonymous reports of
alleged wrongdoing shall not be investigated unless supported by strong documented evidence. |dentity of the whistle
blower shall be kept confidential by the person receiving the complaint and by the investigators unless required by any law
enforcement agency. Whistle blower shall not be reprimanded for any suspected activity unless it is proved that the matter
was reported with an aim to damage the reputation of other personnel or the organization.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT POLICY AND SUCCESSION PLANNING

Human resource management policies including preparation of a succession plan. (Capital mean Financial Capital, Human
Capital, Manufactured Capital, Intellectual Capital and Social & Relationship Capital)

JSIL believes that its human capital is one of the most valuable assets of the Company and the key to success. The
company acknowledges the importance of having a competent and motivated workforce to create value for its shareholders
and therefore, framed its Human Resources policies focusing on the following long-term objectives:

+ Develop the highest caliber people in the right number.
= Ensure corporate culture fostering strong working relationships and competitiveness amongst the employees of JSIL.

= Improving the organization's relationship with its employees and the communication channels, leading to improved and
informed decision making and operations through effective communication of goals and strategies.

+ Provide a working environment conducive to professional development of employees and providing them with
opportunities to build a long-term career in JSIL.

= Improving our ability to retain, motivate, develop and reward employees.

To provide JSIL with uniform rules in order to ensure equitable and consistent application of the policies and eliminate the
need for personal decisions.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

JSIL is an equal-opportunity employer. All employees are treated on their merits, regardless of race, age, color, sex, religion,
sect, relationship status or any other factor not applicable to the position. Employees are valued according to how well they
perform their duties and their ability to maintain Company standards of service. JSIL aims to create a working environment
that is free from discrimination and where all staff members are treated fairly and reasonably, that is, being just and working
within commaonly accepted rules, exercising sound judgment, and taking a sensible approach.
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LEARNING CULTURE

At its core, JSIL's strength lies in its valued people and a culture based on growth mindset. We have developed an
environment which enables our people to learn, unlearn, relearn and grow. We believe potential can be nurtured with
constant mentoring and is not pre-determined, and we should always be learning and curious in trying new things without
fear of failure. JSIL ensures its achievement through firm commitment and flexible approach.

OUR COMMITMENT AND APPROACH

At JSIL, we're focused on bringing out the best in people, supporting their goals, and allowing them to find deep meaning
in their work. We strive to create a respectful, rewarding, diverse, and inclusive work environment that enables our
employees to provide invaluable services that create difference in people lives.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Our growth mindset culture begins with valuing leaming with applications over knowing, seeking out new ideas, embracing
challenges, learning from failure, and improving over time. To support this culture, we offer a diverse range of learmning and
development opportunities. We believe training can be more than formal instructions, and our training philosophy focuses
on providing the right learning, at the right time, in the right way. Opportunities include:

+ MNew employee orientation covering a range of topics including company values, culture, and Standards of Business
Conduct and processes.

+ Training through practical assignments and activities.
+ Regular sessions on product understanding, clients' needs and regulatory requirements.
+ Preparation for the exam of regulatory certification required by Institute of Financial Markets of Pakistan.

GROWTH OPPORTUNITY

The Company encourages existing employees for taking up high level of responsibilities i.e. intemmal promotions and
focuses on enhancing their skill-set through relevant learning initiatives and on-the-job training in addition to providing them
with competitive remuneration. It also helps the company transform existing talent into a competent workforce and become
successor to take up more challenging roles role/position in the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCE PLANNING, TALENT ACQUISITION & INDUCTION

JSIL management team engages into a vigorous HR planning exercise each year to ascertain the new hiring / skill-set
requirement in consonance to the goals set out for the following year.

The Company aims to employ right person for the right job. JSIL ensures that the new employee is being equipped with the
required set of knowledge and tools both technical as well as others to enable him/her settling down within the diverse
culture / envircnment of the Company.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

JSIL acknowledges the importance of workforce diversity in the workplace because it helps building a multitalented
competitive environment, leading to achieve the desired results. The following composition of our diverse workforce reflects
human resources belong to different gender, religion, age group, locations:
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TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 85
e of 2022

Employees

EMPLOYEES BEREAKDOWN BY GENDER

[l Female Il Male

EMPLOYEES BREAKDOWN BY LOCATION

% of
Emplt:;rees M Head Office M IC-Islamabad

Location Wise W IC-Lahore

EMPLOYEES BREAKDOWN BY GENDER, MINORITY GROUP AND AGE GROUP

4 Groups Age Group ™
Muslim Non Muslim =30 30-50 >50
Male 9% 6% 13% 64% 8%

\__ Female 13% 2% 6% 8% 1% J
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EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

At JSIL, we encourage greater employee engagement through various activities depending upon their function and level of
involvement in achieving the Company's strategic objectives. Employees involved in business driving functions are
encouraged to participate in the strategy formulation deliberation and its implementation and monthly meetings, whereas
activities such as sports, annual dinners and picnics, Independence Day, New Year celebrations etc. are organized to keep
the employees motivated and engaged.

A DECENT AND PRODUCTIVE WORKPLACE

JSIL is committed to provide a decent and productive workplace to its employees. The company is located at the center of
the city. The office is equipped with the latest fumiture, lights, ambiance, provision of adequate work space, departmentalization,
safety measures, accompanied with all necessary facilities such as Prayer Hall, Cafeteria, etc.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

JSIL ensures to provide competitive benefits to its employees and makes consistent efforts in bringing improvements in its
benefits structure from time to time. At present, the employees of JSIL enjoy a number of benefits which includes but not
limited to:

+ MEDICAL BENEFITS
JSIL offers medical benefits to help employees in maintaining a high standard of physical fitness needed to perform
their jobs. JSIL employees and their dependents are provided with health insurance coverage to facilitate their
hospitalization needs and efforts are made to extend best possible support whenever needed.

* LIFE INSURANCE AND PAY CONTINUATION PLAN
JSIL employees are covered under life insurance policy and in addition, they are also being covered under pay
continuation plan which is a special benefit being offered whereby the beneficiary of the demised employee continues
to receive the pay till next 5 to 10 years or retirement age whichever comes earlier.

« LEAVES
JSIL recognizes the importance of self-renewal through recreation and rest to reduce stress around personal needs,
and accordingly offers annual leaves, besides casual and sick leaves so as to enable the staff to contribute to JSIL's
work at their highest level of competency and creativity.

* LOANS FACILITY

JSIL acknowledges that there are situations in which the employee looks up for financial assistance and accordingly
offers multiple loan facilities to extend necessary support to its employees.

*» RETIREMENT BENEFIT

JSIL recognizes the need of financial security after retirement and accordingly offers contributory provident fund
scheme to its permanent employees.

SUCCESSION PLANNING

JSIL recognizes that changes in management are inevitable hence, it is essential to establish a succession plan to provide
continuity in leadership and avoid extended gaps in the key { critical positions. JSIL's succession plan is designed to identify
and develop top potential talent for high-level management, key / critical positions that arise due to retirement, resignation,
death or new business opportunities. JSIL Management ensures that the Departmental Heads' identify individuals in their
area who demonstrate quality perfermance and have potential for further growth based on their performance reviews,
relevant job competencies as defined in the current job description and the potential to assume higher responsibilities in the
future. These individuals are especially coached and assessed for the training and development needs or any other job
related assistance in order to prepare them for a challenging or an elevated role in the future.
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POLICY FOR ACTUAL AND PERCEIVED CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Aformal code of conduct is in place that promotes ethical culture in the Company and prevents conflict of interest in capacity
as member of the board. At the time of appointment, Directors are required to disclose the directorships or memberships
they hold in other corporate bodies which are updated on quarterly basis. The Directors’ of the Company recuses
themselves from the meetings when the matters under discussion involve a conflict or potential conflict of interest with the
activities of any undertaking in which they may hold a real or beneficial interest.

POLICY FOR SECURITY CLEARANCE OF FOREIGN DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of eight members and none of them is a foreign director. Hence, security
clearance is not required. In case any foreign director is elected or appointed on the Board, the Company will obtain security
clearance, at the time of appointment of such director, from the Ministry of Interior, Government of Pakistan.

ISSUES RAISED IN LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

The 27th AGM of the Company was held on April 11, 2022, aftended by members of Board and Management. Queries and
clarification related to Financial Statements were raised by the shareholders, which were answered to their satisfaction.
Apart from queries and clarification, no issues or concerns were raised by any shareholder.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

| am pleased to report that in a year characterized by volatility, overheated domestic political situation, a balance of payment
crisis and rapid Rupee devaluation due to rising commaodity prices, JS Investments Limited has proved that the business
model is a strong one, able to withstand huge market swings amidst great uncertainty.

During the year, the company achieved many remarkable milestones that have helped improve its market presence and
increase customer engagement. The management quality rating from PACRA improved to AM2+, which is a testament to
the improvements that we made this year and our commitment to providing high-quality services to customers. Additionally,
several new and exciting products were launched during the year, including the JS Momentum Factor ETF, JS Microfinance
Sector Fund, JS Government Securities Fund and JS Rental REIT Fund. Despite a very challenging economic environment
our growth has significantly outpaced that of the industry. The Company achieved robust performance during the year
wherein the AUMs almost doubled to PKR 44.4 billion as of December 31, 2022, posting a growth of 92% YoY.

The Board of JSIL regularly reviews the pillars that underpin JSIL's ability to generate long-term value, and our directors
have played an integral role in helping us navigate our business through these economically challenging times. The diverse
backgrounds of our directors also play a significant role in overseeing our business from various perspectives. We will
continue to evolve our Board over time to reflect the breadth of our business and to guide us as we move forward in an
ever-changing environment.

By investing in and operating our business for the benefit of all stakeholders, our stock has delivered over 150% in total
returmn over the last ten years outperforming the KSE-100 index return by 15%. We will continue diversifying our investment
platform, technology, and portfolio construction capabilities to differentiate ourselves as we look ahead. We will continue to
live by our purpose, so we can help more and more people invest in their financial well-being.

Going forward, the company aims for sustainable growth in AUMs through the highest standards of service and technologi-
cal tools in developing savings and investment solutions for meeting clients’ expectations across asset classes. The compa-
ny looks forward to building on the cost-efficient model to achieve profitability driven by technology, automation, improve-
ments in data analytics and enhancement in customer experience. Optimizing organizational structure aligns with the
aspirations of the Board and the shareholders,

As the Board Chairman, | thank all our members for their commitment and contribution. The Board has diligently performed
its duties and responsibilities and contributed effectively in guiding the Company in its strategic affairs. The Board shall
conlinue to play a vital role in setting the course of the Company, promoting its success and performance and guiding the
management to conduct operations in conformity with the strategies approved by the Board while upholding the principles
of good corporate governance. | will remain firmly committed to ensuring that the Company complies with all the relevant
provisions of the Code and other regulations and that our management team continues to make decisions that will create
value for you in the short, medium, and long term.

I'would like to acknowledge the support received by the Company from the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
Further, other key stakeholders who deserve appreciation are the dedicated staff of JS Investments, unitholders who
entrusted us with their savings, and our sharehalders for their continued support and confidence.

Yo

Karachi Suleman Lalani
February 24, 2023 Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

We are pleased to present the audited financial statements and auditors' report of JS Investments Limited (JSIL) for the year
ending December 31, 2022,

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

JSIL, a publicly listed company, was incorporated in Pakistan in 1985. The company operates under the licenses of
Investment Advisory, Asset Management Company, Pension Funds Manager, REIT Management Services, and Private
Equity and Venture Capital Fund Management. Under applicable laws, all licenses were obtained from the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

ECONOMIC REVIEW

The year 2022 has been marked by several challenges both on the international and domestic fronts. The successive flow
of events post-pandemic is unique and unprecedented and does not provide any opportunity for relief. While the commeodity
super-cycle seems to have abated, the second-round impacts still reverberate across global economies. The unrelenting
inflationary trend is the biggest issue for policymakers in these extreme testing times.

The country’'s macroeconomic situation significantly deteriorated during CY22 in the context of both fiscal and external
accounts, This eventually led to a sharp uptick in interest rates and exerted extreme pressure on Pak Rupee. Headline CP|
skyrocketed to 19.7% YoY (25.1% YoY in the second half) during CY22, compared to 9.5% YoY in the previous year.

In the wake of heightened uncertainty, the government's efforts finally gained traction following the resumption of the IMF
program in 3QACY22. Due to a lack of continuity in the reform process, the risks that should have been mitigated became
more acute. As a result, most of the burden of corrective measures fell squarely on the monetary policy, which reacted by
raising the policy rate by a staggering 625 basis points during the year closing at 16%.

Amid the political and economic indecision, the one issue that has festered over the year and reached desperate
proportions towards the end of 2022 is the balance of payments crisis. The dollar shortage has crippled the economy and
stalled activity in the import-dependent manufacturing sector and auxiliary industries.

A contractionary economic policy emerges as the only plausible route for 2023, spearheaded by IMF's conditions. Reforms
are the surest path for sustainability and preferably, on an expedited basis.

EQUITY MARKET PERFORMANCE:

The equity index posted a dismal performance during CY 2022, closing at 40,420 points (down -9.4% YoY). Investors remained
cautious amid a highly uncertain economic and political environment, and this was reflected via lackluster activity at the local
bourse as average traded volumes dipped by 52%. Similarly, the average daily traded value shrank by 67% in USD.

On a sector-wise basis, the major negative contributing sectors were Banks (1,856pts), Cements (1,386pts),
Pharmaceuticals (495pts), Engineering (310pts), and Food and Personal Care Products (296pts). Key gainers comprised
Fertilizer (500pts), Power Generation and Distribution (310pts), Technology and Communication (283pts), Oil and Gas
Exploration (219pts), and Chemical (106pts). Scrip-wise positive contributors were Systems Limited (465pts), given organic
sales growth and USD appreciation, Pakistan Oil Fields Limited (342pts) on account of high international oil prices, and the
Hub Power Company Limited (336pts) owing to robust payout.

Meanwhile, negative contributors were Habib Bank Limited (-850pts), Lucky Cement Limited (-661pts), and The Searle
Company Limited {-250pts).

Dollar inflows/revival of the stalled IMF program and political stability are the key drivers of equity market performance
during 2023.
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MONEY MARKET PERFORMANCE:

The SBP raised the policy rate sharply by 625bps to 16.0% in CY22 to curb twin deficits and high inflation readings. During the
period, SBP borrowed funds worth PKR 18.5 frillion in the T-bill auctions against a target of PKR 19.7 trillion, while the bidding
pattern remained skewed towards the 3-month tenor. Furthermore, SBP raised PKR 2.1 trillion in the fixed rate PIB auctions
against a target of PKR 1.7 trillion during the same period. Given a true reflection of a yield curve inversion, the secondary market
yields for 3M increased by 633bps to 16.69%, whereas the 3-year PKRYV slid by 420bps to 15.64%. Investor interest remained
primarily towards shorter tenor papers avoiding the duration risk amid a confractionary monetary stance.

This trend is expected to continue until there are clear signals of inflation cooling off, emboldening SBP to arrest their interest rate
hikes that dominated in recent months. . In 2023, monetary policy will most likely remain highly linked with the external account
situation.

THE ASSET MANAGEMENT INDUSTRY

At the end of CY22, Assets Under Management (AUM) of the mutual fund industry stood at Rs. 1.58 trillion (excluding Fund of
Funds structures), showing a growth of 40% (Rs. 446.5 billion) from the December 2021 level of Rs. 1.13 trillion. AUMs of
conventional schemes grew by 32% to reach Rs. 914 billion (excluding Fund of Funds structures) at the end of the year. AUMs
of Shariah-compliant schemes grew by 51% to reach Rs. 661 billion (exciuding Fund of Funds structures).

During 2022, the mutual fund industry witnessed inflows solely in fixed-income funds due to spiking yields, amounting to
approximately PKR 400 billion, almost equally placed in Conventional and Shariah-Compliant categories. Equity funds saw net
cutflows of approximately PKR 45 billion during the year. A similar trend is expected to prevail, where fixed-income funds will
continue to attract investor flows.

PRINCIPAL RISKS and UNCERTAINTIES

Key sources of uncertainty emanating from the challenging environment the company operates in pose political, social,
technological, economic andfor legal risk factors. JSIL's management has performed a full and systemic review of those risks that
could affect the company's performance, prospects, reputation, or ability to deliver on its commitments. JSIL's overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets arising from those risk factors and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Assets under management (AUM) of the asset management industry showed promising growth in FY22 and crossed Rs.1.58
trillion. Due to the risk-averse stance of many corporates amid rising fixed-income yields, AUMs in this asset class showed
promising growth. However, the retail mutual fund penetration in Pakistan remains very low. In addition to increasing awareness,
the government is encouraging Asset Management Companies (AMCs) to enhance access to mutual funds to a broader
geographical reach by leveraging technology. As a result, asset management companies are upgrading their existing unit
management systems and sales processes to enable digital onboarding for their clients and accelerate client acquisition.
Concurrently, the government is also cautious on issues relating to "Know Your Customer (KYC) requirements to cope with ‘Anti
Money Laundering’ (AML) and ‘Combating the Financing of Temorism (CFT), which puts high regulatory responsibility on AMCs
to perform Customer Due Diligence (CDD) diligently. JSIL is committed to ensuring compliance with these regulations,

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

JSIL posted a net after-tax loss of PKR 149.05 million (LPS of PKR 2.41) for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared to a
loss of PKR 300.08 million (LPS of 4.86 PKR) for the period ended December 31, 2021,

The AUMS (including SMAs and REIT but excluding FoF) have shown significant growth to close at PKR 44.4 billion as of
December 31, 2022, as compared to PKR 24.167 billion as of December 31, 2021, the increase in AUMs has started to translate
into higher revenues, particularly in the second half of 2022, where management fees including commissions on the sale of
open-end funds recorded a growth of 13% as compared to the same period last year. We expect that the continuation of this
growth and the stability of our porifolio invested in fixed-income funds at attractive rates will henceforth improve our bottom line
results.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Mo material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred during the period to which the
balance sheet relates and the date of this report,

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the pandemic in the rear-view mirror, 2022 has been startling in scope and scale. Despite much liquidity flowing into the
industry, we are now operating in an unprecedentedly challenging macroeconomic environment. While this puts the managers'
skills to the test to navigate markets, JS Investments will continue to fulfill its fiduciary duty and work for the financial security of
its unitholders. With an agile mindset, this remains the core element of our business model, in which understanding client needs
helistically and diligently holds the most relevance. A continuous drive towards ESG and sustainability commitments will also
weigh in on our investment processes and the subsequent risk/ retumn analysis.

As the inflationary environment and market volatility raise concems amongst investors, they must extend their universe across a
broad range of classes and act nimbly amidst the evolving market conditions over time. In that pursuit, we look forward to
remaining their trusted partners by offering optimal investment solutions and a diversified product suite. We also aim to rigorously
tap into new cities and expand our reach through innovative marketing strategies. Our highly dedicated team of professionals will
continue to identify the best investment ideas and provide long-term solid returns. Moreover, we would continue to explore
opportunities to enhance customer experience through improved technology and data analytics, wherein we have developed
in-house expertise in building business intelligence platforms.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the year, the Company focused on further diversifying its product suite and continued its product innovation tradition,
JS Momentum Factor Exchange Traded Fund (JSMFETF) was launched in January 2022 as the first smart beta ETF in Pakistan,
which focuses on PSX large and medium-capitalization stocks exhibiting relatively higher price momentum.
As another first, JS Microfinance Sector Fund (JSMFSF) was launched in May 2022 and aims to provide income enhancement
by investing in prime guality microfinance sector products. JS Government Securities Fund (JSGSF) was launched in July 2022
to generate compelitive returns with low risk by primarly investing in  Govermment Securities,
JS Rental REIT (JSRR) was launched in June 2022 to invest in REIT projects directly or through the special purpose vehicle
(SPV) to generate income/returns for unit holders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors are pleased to state as under:

a. The financial statements, prepared by the management of JSIL present fairly the state of affairs, results of its operations, cash
flows, and changes in equity;

b. Proper books of account have been maintained by JSIL;
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial staterments and financial
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of the

financial statements, and any departures therefrom have been adequately disclosed and explained,

The system of internal contrals is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;

There are no significant doubts about JSIL's ability to continue as a going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as contained in Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019;

Asummary of key financial data of the last six years is given in this Annual Report;

Outstanding taxes, duties, levies, and charges have been fully disclosed in the annexed audited financial statements,

j.  JSIL keeps an effective and efficient intermnal financial controls system that remains active through consistent innovation and
manitoring. The internal audit and compliance functions of JSIL evaluate the financial controls and ensure that there is an
effective control environment throughout the company. Based on the evaluation processes, the BoD considers that the
existing internal financial control system is adequate and has been effectively implemented;

k. The Code of Conduct has been disseminated throughout JSIL along with supporting policies and procedures and

I.  The value of investments of the Staff Provident Fund of JSIL of June 30, 2022, was Rs. 7.56 million.
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CORPORATE AFFAIRS
The following directors served on the board during the year.

Mr. Suleman Lalani Chairman, Non-executive Director 7\
Mr. Iffat Zehra Mankani Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Hasan Shahid Non-executive Director
Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas MNon-executive Director

Mr. Atif Salim Malik

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin
Ms. Mediha Kamal Afsar
Mr. Faroog Ahmed Malik

Non-executive Director

Independent, Mon-executive Director
Independent, Non-executive Director

Independent, Mon-executive Director

Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan Retired
Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh Retired
\Mr_ Asif Reza Sana Retired 2

Composition of the Board of Directors

The composition of the Board of Directors is governed by requirements of the Companies Act 2017, Code of Corporate
Governance, and other best practices adopted under the Articles of Association of the Company.

JS Investments Limited has a balanced Board; a diverse group of highly qualified professionals having an appropriate mix
of core competencies, diversity, requisite skills, knowledge, and experience. This diversity ensures that all relevant
perspetives are represented in decision-making.

At present, the board of the Company comprises of 8 directors (including the CEO who is deemed a director). The
compaosition of the board is given below;

. Executive Female Director - CEQ 01 E
Naon-executive Director 04
' Independent / Non-executive Directors [including two female directors] 03 J

Independent Directors and justification for their independence

The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 in Regulation 6 makes it mandatory that each
Listed Company shall have at least two or one-third of the Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors.

Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 requires that an independent director to be appointed shall be selected from a data
bank maintained by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance - an institute notified by the Commission.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 BT




#]S investments

Better investments for a Batter Future!

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Election of Directors of the Company was held in an Extraordinary General Meeting of the members on December 28, 2022,
The following persons were elected unopposed as directors of the company for the next tenure.

4 Mr. Suleman Lalani Non-executive Director E
Mr. Hasan Shahid Non-executive Director
Mirza M. Sadeed Hassan Barlas Non-executive Director
Mr. Atif Salim Malik
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin
Ms. Mediha Kamal Afsar

0 Mr. Faroog Ahmed Malik

Non-executive Director

Independent, Non-executive Director

Independent, Non-executive Director

Independent, Non-executive Director P

The positions of the Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer are kept separate in line with the best governance practices and
the Chairperson has been elected from among the Non-executive Directors. The Board has established a separate Audit
committee and Human Resource & Remuneration committee to assist the Board in the performance of its functions. Further,
none of the directors hold directorship of more than seven listed companies,

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets at least once every quarter. During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held; notices
fagendas of each were circulated in advance, in a timely manner. Decisions made during the meetings were clearly stated in the
minutes of the meetings maintained by the Company Secretary, duly circulated to all directors for endorsement, and were,
appraved in the subsequent Board meetings.

During the year four meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The attendance of each director for these meetings is as
follows

7 Name Meetings attended
Mr. Suleman Lalani 3
Mr. Iffat Zehra Mankani
Mr. Hasan Shahid
Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas
Mr. Atif Salim Malik”
Mr. Zahid Ullah Khan
Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin
Ms. Mediha Kamal Afsar® -
Mr. Faroog Ahmed Malik™ -
\_ Mr. Asif Reza Sana 2 /
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* Elected on December 28, 2022.

The leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the meeting due to their preoccupation.

i
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BOARD MEETINGS HELD OUTSIDE PAKISTAN
During the year 2022, all the board meetings were convened in Pakistan.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to its Committees. The Committees operate under Board's approved Terms of
References (TORs); are responsible for review of relevant matters and making recommendations to the Board.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board Audit Committee comprises non-executive directors
with Chairman being an Independent Director. During the year, four meetings of the Board Audit Committee were held. The
attendance of Directors at the Committee’s meetings was as follows:

Name Meetings attended h
Mr. Asif Reza Sana 1
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin 4
Mr. Hasan Shahid 4
Ms. Mediha Kamal Afsar* "

\_ Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas® - Y

* Became member of the committee after the election of Directars held on December 28, 2022.
Against all absences, leave of absence was duly granted by the Committee

MEETINGS OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is responsible for the formulation and regular review of the Human
Resources policies of the Company. It assists the Board in matters dealing with selection, evaluation, and compensation of
senior officers including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary,
and Chief Investment Officer. It also recommends succession planning of these officers.

The Committee consists of non-executive directors with Chairman being an Independent Director. During the year, one
meeting of the Committee was held. The attendance of the Directors at the committee's meetings was as follows:

/" Name Meetings attended R
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin 1
Mr. Suleman Lalani 1

\_Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani 1
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MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Risk Management Committee consists of executive and non-executive directors. During the year, four
meetings of the Executive Risk Management Committee were held. The attendance of the Directors at the meetings was
as follows:

¢ Name Meetings attended ™
Mr. Suleman Lalani 4
Mr. Imran Haleem Shaikh 2
Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani 4
Mr. Atif Salim Malik” - i

* Elected as Director on December 28, 2022.

The terms of reference of the Committees have been formulated, documented, and advised to the Committees for
compliance.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING PROGRAM

The Company adopts a keen interest in the professional development of its Board members as per the requirements of the
Code of Corporate Governance. Five out of the eight Directors of the newly appointed Board are cerified under the
Directors Training Program (DTP).

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with the Code of
Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own remuneration. The
company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except fees for attending the meetings. The company’s
remuneration policies are structured in line with prevailing CCG Regulations and Section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017.
For information on the remuneration of Directors and CEQ in 2022-23, please refer to Mote 31 to the Financial Statements.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE CHAIRMAN, BOARD MEMBERS, BOARD COMMITTEES AND CEO

The Board considers its performance assessment as a key contributor to good governance, as it provides feedback from
the Directors on their perceptions of how the Board is currently performing its role and responsibilities. Envisaging the
same, the Board devised in-house questionnaires based on emerging and leading practices to assist the performance of
the board as a whole, of its committees, and of its members. The performance of the Chairman, board members, board
committee, and CEQ was evaluated and during the meeting, various points were explained by the Secretary.

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST BY DIRECTORS

Mo trades in JSIL shares have been carried out by the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary, executives, their spouses, and minor children during 2022.

PARENT COMPANY
JS Bank Limited, the holding company of JS Investments Limited, holds 84.56% of the equity.

EARNING PER SHARE
The loss per share of JSIL for the year is Rs. 2.41.

i
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement showing the pattern of shareholding in JSIL and additional information as of December 31, 2022, is provided in
this Annual Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions are disclosed at Note 32 to the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2022,

DIVIDEND

As the company has incurred a loss for the year, the Board of Directors has opted not to declare a dividend for the year
ended December 2022,

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors, on recommendations of the Audit Committee, has proposed the re-appointment of M/s. KPMG
Taseer Hadi and Co, Chartered Accountants for the ensuing year ending December 31, 2023.

ASSET MANAGER AND ENTITY RATING

'Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned JS Investments Limited a rating of '"AM2+' with 'stable
outlook' dated December 27, 2022, which is an improvement from the previous rating of AM2 with ‘positive outlook.” The
rating denotes high management quality.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
The Directors express their gratitude to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Trustees of Funds

under its management for their valuable support, assistance, and guidance. The Board also appreciates the employees of
JSIL for their dedication and hard work and the shareholders for their confidence in the management.

On behalf of the Board

| Lrtns

Director Chief Executive Officer

February 24, 2023
Karachi
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BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE & ITS TERMS OF REFERENCE

The board of directors of JS Investments Limited has established an Audit Committee, comprising three non-executive
directors.

The Audit Committee meets at least once every guarter of the financial year. During the year under review four meetings of
the Committee were held which were attended by the members as follows:

Ms. Mediha Kamal Afsar Chairperson
Mirza M. Sadeed Hassan Barlas Member
Mr. Hasan Shahid Member

The Audit Committee shall, inter alia, recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors, their
removal, audit fees, the provision by the external auditors of any service to the listed company in addition to audit of its
financial statements. The Board of Directors shall give due consideration to the recommendations of the Audit Committee
in all these matters and where it acts otherwise,; it shall record the reasons thereof.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall also include the following:

The board of directors of every listed company shall determine the terms of reference of the audit committee. The board of
directors shall provide adequate resources and authority to enable the audit committee to carry out its responsibilities
effectively. The terms of reference of the audit committee shall be explicitly documented and shall also include the following:

a) Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the listed company's assets;

b) Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the listed company, prior to their approval by the
Board of Directors, focusing on:

i) Major judgmental areas;
ii) Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;
(iii} Going concern assumption;
(iv) Any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(v) Compliance with applicable accounting standards;
(vi) Compliance with listing regulations and other statutory and regulatory requirements; and
(vii) Significant related party transactions.
c) Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to publication;

d) Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations arising from interim and final
audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of management, where necessary);

e) Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management’s response thereto;
f) Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the listed company;

g) Review of the scope and extent of intemal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and procedures and ensuring that the
internal audit function has adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the listed company;

h) Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by fraud, corruption and abuse of
power and management's response thereto;

T4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 .
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i) Ascertaining that the internal control systems including financial and operational controls, accounting systems for timely
and appropriate recording of purchases and sales, receipts and payments, assets and liabilities and the reporting
structure are adequate and effective;

i) Review of the listed company's statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the board of directors and
internal audit reparts;

k) Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by the board of
directars, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and to consider remittance of any matter to the extemal
auditors or to any other external body:;

I} Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;

m) Menitoring compliance with the regulations and identification of significant violations thereof;

n) Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to audit committee in confidence, concerns, if any, about
actual or potential improprieties in financial and other matters and recommend instituting remedial and mitigating measures;

o) Recommend to the board of directors the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of
any service permissible to be rendered to the listed company by the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial
statements. The board of directors shall give due consideration to the recommendations of the audit committee and
where it acts otherwise and shall record the reasons thereof.

p) Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the board of directors.

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The HR & Remuneration Committee shall comprise a Chairman and at least two other members (who should preferably be
non-executive Directors) and the CEO. A guorum shall be two members. The Head of HR shall be the Secretary of the
Committee.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS
The Committee shall meet at least once a financial year or whenever the Chairman deems it necessary.

ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS
Other than members, the attendance of non-members shall be by invitation only.

AUTHORITY
The Board authorizes the Committee to seek any information it requires from any Company employee to perform its duties.

In connection with its duties, the Committee is authorized by the Board at the Committee’s sole discretion to obtain
independent professional advice and expertise if it considers this necessary.

SCOPE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee shall be at the policy-making level, It shall not infringe on the Management function. It shall play an advisory role
and make recommendations to the full Board for approval.

The Committee shall systematically review major HR policies to update and align them with best practices based on equity, merit,
transparency, efficiency and affordability principles. The Committee shall also encourage the development of new policies to help
attract, retain, develop and motivate quality personnel and to assist in helping the Company meet its corporate and business
objectives. Areas of review could cover Recruitment, Performance Management Systems, Compensation, Training and
Development, Succession Planning, Job Evaluation, Manpower Planning, and Organization Structure,

_ ANNUAL REPORT 2022 75 /




#JS investiments

Better investments for a Batter Future!

2. Articulate and maintain a Compensation Philosophy and strategy for the Company. Ensure compensation and benefit
levels are maintained at the desired alignment with competition and are consistent with the Company's adopted
philosophy. Undertake an annual review and recommend overall budgetary recommendations for salary increments and
other pay adjustments.

3. The Committee shall periodically assess the dynamics and corporate culture and recommend 'change management’
programs to enhance the Company's performance. These could include periodic employee surveys, and dialogue
groups, to bring about the desired culture change.

4. The Committee may review appraisals, development plans and compensation of the CEQ's direct reports.

5. The Committee may undertake CEQ's performance appraisal and make salary recommendations, including perks and
other benefits.

6. Where Human Resource and Remuneration consultants are appointed, the Committee shall ask the consultant to
disclose their credentials to the Committee and whether they have any other connection with the Company.

EXECUTIVE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

1. INTRODUCTION

This Executive Risk Management Committee (the Committee) is a Committee of the Board of JSIL established to assist
the Board in evaluating significant matters arising from the core business of fund management, affiliated business
operations, and strategic decision-making undertaken by the Company.

The structure of the Committee will observe the functions/ matters pertaining to Risk Management and Executive
Management, as given below;

a) The Committee's Risk Management function will assist the Board in identifying, assessing, quantifying, managing
and mitigating the risks arising from the core business functions and operations of the Company; and

b) The Executive Management function will assist in developing and formulating the strategic decision, plans,
corporate policies, and annual budgets consistent with the Company's Vision, Mission and Long-term goals.

2. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee shall have at least three members of the Board, including the Chief Executive Officer. The Chair of the
Committee shall be any member appointed by the Board (excluding the CEQ). Secretary of the Committee may be a
member of the Management (Company Secretary / Risk Head / Chief Strategy Officer) as the Board occasionally directs.

3. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The recommended frequency of the meeting shall be five times in a calendar year in conjunction with Board meetings
held for the approval of interim and final accounts of AMC and Funds and Annual Budget and Corporate Business
Strategy;

Any other specific agenda item falling in the scope of the Committee may be addressed through additional meetings as
and when required in consultation with the Chair of the Committee.

4. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Meetings of the Committee shall be convened by the Secretary at the request of any of its members. Unless otherwise
agreed, a notice of each meeting confirming the venue, time and date of the meeting, together with an agenda of items
to be discussed, shall be forwarded to each member of the Committee at least seven days before the meeting date.

The agenda shall be circulated with relevant supporting papers to the Committee members and other attendees as
appropriate.
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5. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

a)

vi.

vii.

wiii.

The Board has established the Committee to bring in line the role of the management for the development of risk
management culture and program. The duties and responsibilities pertaining to the Risk Management areas
include the followings:

Review the strategic direction, objectives, and effactiveness of the management's risk management policies,
procedures, and systems to mitigate and control the risks of the Company emanating from both the Management
Company (JSIL) and Funds under its Management;

The Committee shall review any act of intended or deliberate deviant behavior by the employees of the Company
with the defined policies, procedures, practices and from the applicable laws if escalated by the management;

The Commiltee shall review the significant events (e.g., regulatory violations) as reported by the management that
may potentially give rise to reputational rigk issues, penalties, show cause notices; and

The Committee shall review the affairsimatters of operational risks annually, covering the financial soundness,
stability and creditworthiness of JSIL and report significant events/ matters to the Board.

The duties and responsibilities of Executive Management areas shall include the followings;

Review any significant plan for expansion or projects related to JSIL's ongoing activities (for example, joint
ventures, significant business opportunities, mergers, acquisitions, asset sales or purchases) and report on such
matters to the Board for examination/ consideration;

Monitor performance subsequently, on a periodic basis, in connection with such business plans or transactions or
projects;

Review the annual business plan and budget of JSIL and recommend its decision for the Board's approval. The
Committee will also review and approve interim budgetary proposals if required.

Review the Company's capital expenditures and annual budget, human resources budget and annual branch
expansion plan and recommend its proposal to the Board for approval.

Review and recommend to the Board of Directors for its approval any changes in the Organizational
Structure/creation of a new department.

Overseeing significant legal cases of the Company and the Funds under its management. Accordingly, the Board
will require the management to act per the Committee's and the Board's Guidance.

Review and discuss the Company's capital structure and financing activities and, if required, may recommend its
decision to the Beard for approval.

The Committee may also make any recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area where action
or improvement is needed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of JS Investments Limited (“the Company”) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation No. 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of
the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether
the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness
of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committes.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does
not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022,

KpwS e —

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 8 March 2023
Karachi

UDIN: CR202210106N6gLnQESj
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
COMPANIESCODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REGULATIONS, 2019

This statement is being presented to comply with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 (the Regulation). The purpose of the Code is to establish a framework of good governance whereby a listed entity is
managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors is eight as per the following:

a. Female 03 h
( .

Lo [ mate 05 o

2. The Company encourages the representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing
minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present, the Board includes:

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin
Ms. Mediha Kamal Afsar
Mr. Faroog Ahmed Malik

i) Independent Directors

i) Executive Directors Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani

Mr. Suleman Lalani

Mr. Atif Salim Malik

Mr. Hasan Shahid

Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas

iii) Non-Executive Directors

%

The independent directors meet the independence criteria defined under section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 (Act).

3. The directors have confirmed that no one serves as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this
Company,

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate
it along with its supporting policies and procedures,

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies for the
Company. A complete record of particulars of the important policies, along with the date on which they were approved
or amended, has been maintained.

€. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised, and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the board/
shareholders as empowered by the applicable provisions of the Act and these Regulations.
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7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting of the Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations.

9. Out of eight directors on the Board, five are certified under the Directors Training Program (DTP).

10. There was no change of Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the year. However, the Board has
approved the appointment of the chief financial officer, together with his remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment, which complied with the relevant requirements of the Regulations

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;

12.The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

-
Committees Members

Ms. Mediha Kamal Afsar
Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed H. Barlas
Mr. Hasan Shahid

Audit Committee

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin
Mr. Suleman Lalani
Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Suleman Lalani
Ms. Iffat Zehra Mankani
Mr. Atif Salim Malik

Executive Risk Management Committee

13.The terms of reference of the committees described above have been formed, documented and advised to the
Committee for compliance.

14.The frequency of meetings of the committees is as follows:

a) Audit Committee; Four meetings during the financial year.
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee; One meeting during the financial year.
c) Executive Risk Management Committee; Four meetings during the financial year.

15.The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to BDO Ebrahim & Company, Chartered Accountants who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of
the Company.

16.The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review program of the ICAP and registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as
adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse,
parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.
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17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except,
in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement, and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of mandatory regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with; and

Please note that non-mandatory regulation no.5 of the Regulations was not applicable this year. In addition, the Company
is maintaining a record of significant policies as required under non-mandatory regulation no.10 (4) of the regulations.

19. The independent directors have the requisite competencies, skills, knowledge, and experience to discharge and
execute their duties competently, as per applicable laws and regulations under which they hereby fulfilled the require-
ments; they do not warrant the appointment of a third independent director.

20. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 as below:

The broad functions of the Nomination Committee are already being performed by another committee. Therefore, the BOD
believes that a separate committee for Nomination is optional.

'

Iffat Zehra Mankani Hasan Shahid
Chief Executive Officer Director

February 24, 2023

Karachi,
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REPORT ON AUDIT COMMITTEE’S % Bl Diune Rgtel, Toos Skloton ol T wmN, o P Sexd e (emstoton, o
C 's i ial i \ i ith lati icabl i
COMPOSITION, ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES s S Bt Bnd B o

9. The Audit Committee has reviewed the related party transactions and recommended the same for approval of the

The Board Audit Committee ("the Committee") comprises three members, two of which are non-executive directars and one Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting after ratification from the Board of Directors.
independent director, the chairperson of the Committee. 10. Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, precluding the Directors, the CEO and
Executives of the Company from dealing in Company's shares before each Board meeting involving announcament of
The following are the members of the Committee: interim/final results, distribution of dividends to the shareholders or communication of any other business decision,
which could materially affect the market share price of the Company.
il Name Status Role ™ 12. The statutory and regulatory obligations and requirements of best governance practices have been met.
Ms. Mediha Kamal Afsar Independent Director Chairperson 13. The Committee members carried out the Annual Evaluation of the Board Audit Committee in terms of board structure,
- - - Strategy, Decision Making, Internal Controls and Risk Management.
Mr. Hasan Shahid Mon-executive Director Member : - 3 :
- - - 14. The Committee regularly reviews the mechanism for employees and management to report concerns to the Audit
. Mr. Mirza M. Sadeed Hassan Barlas Non-executive Director Member J Committee and scrutinizes any allegations seriously. During the year, no whistles were blown.

The Committee as a whole possess significant economic, financial and business acumen. During the year, four meetings of
the Audit Commitiee were held, which the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer also attended by invitation. PRESENCE OF THE CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE IN AGM

The Company’s extemnal auditors also attended two meetings when issues related to accounts and audits were discussed. The Chairman of the Audit Committee remains present at the AGM to answer guestions on the Audit Committee's activities
and matters within the scope of the Audit Committee's responsibilities.

The Audit Committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2022, and reports that:

1. The Company has adhered in full, without any material departure, to both the mandatory and voluntary provisions of
the listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange, Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, the Company's Code of Conduct and Values and the international best practices of governance
throughout the year.

2. The Company has issued a "Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019," which has also been reviewed and certified by the Company's External Auditors.

3. The Company’s Code of Conduct has been disseminated and placed on Company’s website.

4. The Audit Committee reviewed quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the Company and
recommended for approval of the Board of Directors. It has also reviewed preliminary results announcements before
publication and the internal audit reports.

5. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied except for any changes appropriately disclosed in the
financial statements. Applicable Intermational Financial Reporting Standards were followed in the preparation of
financial statements of the Company and consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis for the financial
year ended June 30, 2022, which present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year under review.

6. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. The Company has maintained proper and
adequate accounting records in accordance with the applicable laws, and financial reporting is consistent with
Management processes and adequate for shareholder needs.

7. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. Accordingly, approved accounting standards comprise the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act),
provisions of and directives issued under the Act. In case of requirements differ, the provisions of or directives under
the Act prevail.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

| 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | 2019 | 2018 | 2017 |

KEY INDICATORS

Profitability ratio
ProfitLoss) Before Tax / Management
Remuneration (%) B1.72% -186.49% -13.28% -29.68% 29.22% H0Fh
Prafit/{Loss) After Tax / Management
Remuneration (%) -86.08% -193.81% -23.01% -43.59% 21.30% 16.24%
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax / Total Revenues (%) T1.91% -546.33% -6.89% -17.50% 14.68% 19.13%
Profit!{Loss) After Tax / Total Revenues (%) -75.74% -567.79% -11.93% -25.70% 10.74% 9.13%
Retum on equity (%) (10.42) (18.30) (222) 4.57) 2.02 1.36
Retum On Capital Employed (%) (0.09) 017) (0.02) (.04} 0.02 0
Gross Yeild on eaming assets 1.45% -7.08% 8.88% 5.73% 10.38% 6.85%
Costfincome ratio {1.58) (4.73) (1.07) (144} {0.87) (0.83)
Share Holder Funds. B17.74 617.74 617.74 617.74 am.y2 801.72
Retum on Share Holder Funds -11.00% -19.95% -2.24% 4.T7% 269% 214%
Liquidity Ratio
Advances to Deposit Ratio 240% 5.75% 6.73% 6.68% 4.03% T8
Current Ratio {Times) 8.57 872 11.16 10.96 7.56 9.28
Cash/ Current Liabilities (%) 6.06% 10.66% 4.88% 2.79% 919% 6.61%
Cost of Funds (27.90) (34.40) (35.00) (38.42) (3.33) (0.29)
Cash Flow Coverage Ratio (0.47) (0.27) {0.18) 10.21} (0.18) (0.38)
Met Interest Income as a percentage of
working funds / Operating Cost -
e R R PERFORMANCE EVALUATION AGAINST TARGETS /
Investment/Market Rations B U DG ETS
Eamings/|Loss) Per Share [Rs.) (241) (4.86) {064) (1.40} 0.52 040
PIE Ratio (Times) (5.39) (25T) (36.08) {11.56) 15.37 2339
Price ta Book Ratio 0.58 051 081 055 0.32 035 We have audited the annexed financial statements of JS Investments Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Dividend Yield (%) [Dividend per share / statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
Price per share] - - - 24.68% - - income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
Dividend Payoul (Per Share.) & < + 4 - - statement.
Dividend Cover {times) [EPS/Dividend
Cz*“-;‘;‘?_’;*l ; % : : : ﬁ“? : BUSINESS GROWTH
Maikeil::alsg per share - year end Re 1215; 12_5‘5 23_25 1621 B.Dt; 9_46 We have audited the annexed financialil statements of JS Invet?'.tmenls I..irnite;l (':ths Company"), which comprise the Assets
Market vee per share - High Rs. 13.00 23,90 2550 1850 1150 1750 under Management {AUMS)_ are the primary benchmark of business growth within the A;set Managgment Industry. JSIL.hgs
Market value per share - Low Rs. 901 1150 986 531 165 995 shcn_un lremendou_s grpwth in .AUMs dur_-npg the year as c9mparta_c! to last.year and ;cmeved the highest gn.'cwth rate within
Bk e Rs. 21,94 2436 2874 238 2466 %97 the industry. Considering Pakisltan's pplrhcall slsrjd economic conmhqns. this accumplrsi'lnmanl was only possible because the
Dupont Analysis [NP margin x AT x EM] 0.12) (0.06) (0.04) 0.08) 0.04 002 Company focused on product innovation, digitization and personalized customer service.
Free Cash Flow (197.56) (149.82) (100.27) {333.60} (86.87) (140.45)
Economic Value Added FINANCIAL RESULTS
Pakistan faced unprecedented challenges on the Economic front during the year 2022. Interest rate hikes during the year
Capital Structure changed investors' preference from Equity Funds to Fixed Income Funds. This shift had revenue implications for the Asset
Earning Assels to otal assets ralio 073 075 0.76 0.75 0.73 078 Management Industry, as the Fixed Income Funds are lower management fee (revenues) earners than Equity Funds. This
Met Asset per share 2194 2436 2874 2938 26.83 2925 factor also affected JS Investments to the extent that although the AUMs growth was the highest in the industry, the same
Debt to Equity - Book Value (%) 30.72% 3.93% 20.83% N4 14.42% N.75% didn't translate into revenues at the same ratio. The inflationary environment in the country has inevitably increased the
Dabt lo Equity - Market Value (%) 52.87% 62.23% 36.93% 74.63% 44.44% BIT% operational costs of doing business since last year.
Although the above two factors had a significant effect on the Company's financial performance, relentiess efforts by the
management under the Board's directions have reduced the net loss for the year by half compared to last year.
JSIL evidenced a bottom-line profit in the last quarter of 2022 and aims to continue this trend during 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF JS INVESTMENTS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the annexed financial statements of JS Investments Limited (“the Company”), which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of

Following is the Key audit matter:

S. No. Key audit matter

1. : Valuations of Investments

Refer Note 4.4, 11 and 12 to the financial
statemenis.

The fair value of investments held by the
Company amounted to Rs. 1,159 million,
which constitutes 85% of the Company's
total assets as at 31 December 2022.

The significant portion of the investments
comprise of wunits of mutual funds
classified at "Fair Value through profit or
loss™.

We identified assessing the fair value of
the investment as a key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included the following:

+ Assessed the design and tested operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls in place
relating to valuation of investments;

+ Compared and recalculated the fair valuation of
investments with available external quoted
market price;

+  Obtained independent confirmations for verifying
the existence of the investment portfolio as at 31
December 2022 and reconciled it with the books
and records of the Company; and

+ Considered the Company's disclosures of
investments in accordance with the requirements

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibiliies for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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because of its significance to the
financial statements.

of accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Fi ial Stat its

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

Board of directors are responsible for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process,
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable
in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Taufig.

K)‘W\Q '?ﬁlbu_-— =

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 6 March 2023
Karachi

UDIN: AR202210106NteuR8ygB
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Note [T N

ASSETS
MNon-current assets r
Property and equipment 5 275,654,014 341,147,973
Intangible assets [ 6,469,897 10,994,010
Long-term loans and prepayments - consldered good T 2,152,930 1454417
Long-term investment 12 265,000 -
284,541,841 353,596,400
Current assets
Balances due from funds under management - related parties 8 124,610,226 | 105,157,354
Loans and advances - considered good k] 2,336,220 3,258,499
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 10 97,347,215 56,660,058
Other financial assets - investments 11 1,159,071,682 1,352,102,015
Taxation - net 29 91,587,518 87,941,712
Cash and bank balances 13 12,288,813 26,145,280
1,487,241,674  1,631,264.918
Total assets 1,771,783,515 1.984.861.318
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and reserves
Share capital
Authorised capital 2,500,000,000 2,500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 14 617,742,560 617,742,560
Unappropriated profit 737,654,383 886,705,096
1,355,396,943 1,504 447,656
LIABILITIES
Non - Current Liabilities
Leass liabilities 18 213,734,571 235,185,675
213,734,571 235,185,675
Current Liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities 19 173,481,210 167,884,028
Unclaimed dividend 4,922,407 4,945,642
Current maturity of long term financing 16 - 38,778,533
Current maturity of lease liabilities 18 24,248,384 33,619,784
202,652,001 245,227,987
Total Liabilities 416,386,572 480,413,662
Contingencies and commitments 20 = &
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,771,783,515 1,984 861.318

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sl b ﬁ

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

ACC 2022 | 2021

Income
Remuneration from funds under management - net 21 173,162,686 154,827,719
Commission from open end funds under management 22 2,995,834 465,252
Dividend income 23 8,345,839 8,199,539
Net unrealised loss on remeasurement of investments classified
as alt fair value through profit or loss 14 (1,844,342) (137,639,293)
Net (loss) / gain on sale of investments classified as at fair value
through profit or loss (8,648,641) 11,076,059
Return on bank deposits 2,113,339 1,957 860
Remuneration and share of profit from management
of discretionary and non discretionary client portfolio 24 1,830,386 2,533,960
Return on debt security 11.2 18,841,345 11,428,554
196,796,446 52,849,650
Administrative expenses 25 (318,923,578) (326,757,876)
Selling and distribution expenses 26 (36,907,920) (5,070,782)
Operating Loss (159,035,052) (278,979,008)
Financial charges 27 (27,899,684) (34,400,093)
(186,934,736) (313,379,101)
Other income 28 45,427,639 24,643,830
Loss before Taxation (141,507,097) {288,735,271)
Taxation - net 29 (7,543,616) (11,340,313)
Loss after Taxation (149,050,713) (300,075.584)
Loss per share for the year - basic and diluted 30 (2.41) (4.86)

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Note  [EECFZINNN NNNFIVE

Loss after Taxation (149,050,713) (300,075,584)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (149,050,713) (300,075,584)

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Issued,
subscribed | Unappropriated

and paid-up
capital

Balance as at January 01, 2021 617,742,560 1,157,244,225 1,774,986,785
Transfer upon merger 29,536,455 29,536,455
Loss for the year ended December 31, 2021 - (300,075,584)  (300,075.,584)

Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2021 = = -

Balance as at December 31, 2021 617,742,560 886,705,096  1,504,447,656

Balance as at January 01, 2022 617,742,560 886,705,096  1,504,447,656

Loss for the year ended December 31, 2022

'

(149,050,713)  (149,050,713)
Other comprehensive loss for the year

ended December 31, 2022 - - i

Balance as at December 31, 2022 617,742,560 737,654,383  1,355,396,943

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2022
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year before taxation

Adjustment for:

Remuneration from funds under management - net 21
Rar ion fram di i v & non di i v client

of discrationary and non discretionary dient portfolio
Commission from open end funds under management 22
Dividend income 23
Retum on debt securities 1.2
Depreciation expense 51452
Amortization expansea B
Financial charges 27
Return on bank deposits
Met gain on sale of investments classified as 'at fair value

through profit or loss'
MNest ur i loss on itof i

classified as ‘at fair value through proft or loss' %
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 511

Woerking capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in curent assets ©
Loans and advances - securad
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Increase | decrease in current liabilities:
Accrued and other liabilities

Taxes paid - net
Remuneration and commission received from funds under management
MNet cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment made
Proceeds from sale of invesiments
Payments for purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets
Amalgamation of wholly owned subsidiary company
Dividends received
Returm on bank deposits
Retum on debt securities
Sale proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Met cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Unclaimed dividend paid
Lease rentals paid
Financial charges paid
Running Finance Facility obiained
Running Finance Facility setiled
HNet cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Transfer upon merger

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
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(141,507,097) (288,735,271)
(173,162,686) (154,827,719)
{1,830,386) (2,533,950)
(2,995,834) (465,252)
(8,345,839) (8,199,539)
(18,841,345) (11,428,554)
61,553,881 68,847,027
5028113 5,441,776
27,899,684 34,400,093
{2.113,339) (1,857 860)
8,648,641 (11,076,059)
1,844,342 137,639,293
884, (18,309,087
{267,706,200) (249,205,122)
223,766 1,350,147 |
(40,687,157) (49,983)
33,181,351 (36,332,936
(73,644,742) (35,032,752)
(341,350,942) (284,237 ,674)
(11,189,422) (9,815871)
158,536,034 162,170,732
(194,004,330) (131,883,013)
(6,528,827,696) (1,972,704,001)
6,711,365,080 2,079,330,844
(3,639,541) (23,024,540)
37,500,000
8,345,839 8,199,539
2,033,919 1,957 880
18,625,685 11,428,554
30,990,000 25,644,400
238,893,286 168,332,656
(23,235) (237,074)
(30,822,504) (17,777,527)
(27,899,684) (31,259,651)
- 340,844,067
= (340,844 067 )
(58,745,423) (40,274,252
(13,856,467) (12,824 609)
26,145,280 9,433,434
- 28,536,455
12,288,813 26,145,280
.
'
Director

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

3 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 JSInvestments Limited (the Company) is a public listed company incorporated in Pakistan on February 22, 1995 under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are quoted on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited since April 24, 2007. The registered office of the Company is located at The Centre, 15th Floor,
Plot No. 28, SB-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi. The Company is a subsidiary of JS Bank Limited (which has
84.56 percent direct holding in the Company) which is a subsidiary of JSCL (Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd.), the

Ultimate: Parent.

The Company has obtained the licanse of an “Investment Advisor” and “Asset Management Company” (AMC) under the
Nen-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 {the NBFC Rules) and the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Requlations). In addition, the Company also acts
as Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension Systermn Rules, 2005. The Company has also acquired the Private
Equity and Venture Capital Fund Management Services license and REIT Management Services license from Securities

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has assigned JS Investments’ Management Quality Rating of AM2+ with a "stable"

outlook. The rating denotes High Management Quality.

Geographical location and addresses of business units of the Company are as under:

Location Address

Karachi The Centre, 19th Floer, Plot No. 28, SB-5
Abdullah Haroon Road Saddar, Karachi,

Lahore Ground Floor, No 25, Block 13, Plot No.1-4,

Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahare.

Islamabad Office # 414, 4th Floor, PSX Building,
Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad.

Furpose
Head Office

Branch Office

Branch Office

1.2 The Company is an asset management company, pension fund and private equity and venture capital manager for the

following funds for the year ended December 31, 2022

1.21 Open-end mutual funds
- JS Growth Fund
- Unit Trust of Pakistan
- J§ Income Fund
- JS Islamic Fund
- J8 Fund of Funds
- J5 Islamic Income Fund
- JS Cash Fund
- J5 Large Cap Fund
- JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds
- JS Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund
- JS Islamic Daily Dividend Fund
- JS Momentum Factor Exchange Traded Fund
- J8 Microfinance Sector Fund
- JS Rental REIT Fund
- JS Government Securities Fund

Private Equity and Venture Capital Fund
= JS Motion Picture Fund

Pension funds
- JS Pension Savings Fund
- JS Islamic Pension Savings Fund
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
31 Statement of compliance

These financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reperting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the replead Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and

- Provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations); and

Directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Where the provisions and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIllA of the replead Companies Ordinance,
1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the replead Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations
have been followed.

3.2  Consolidation of mutual fund by the asset management company
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO 56 (1) / 2016 dated January 28, 2016, has notified
that the requirements of IFRS 10 {Consolidated Financial Statements) and Section 237 of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (Section 228 of Companies Act 2017) are not applicable in case of investments made by companies in mutual funds
established under Trust structure. Accordingly, the Company has not consolidated the financial position and result of
operations of mutual funds managed by it in their financial statements.

3.3  Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for certain investments which are
stated at fair value which discdosed in note 11.

34  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

35 Useof critical ti i and jud

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires
management to make judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilties, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognized in the peried in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the ravision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

i) Amortisation of intangible assets (notes 4.3 and 6);

ii} Provision for taxation (notes 4.9 and 29);

i} Classification and valuation of investments (notes 4.4 and 11);

iv) Detarmination and measurement of useful life and residual value of property and equipment (notes 4.2 and 5.1);
v) Recognition and measurement of deferred Lax assets and liabilities (notes 4.9 and 16); and

vi) Leases (note 4.13).

3.6 New/Revised Sta , Interp i and A d it

There are cerain interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on
or after January 01, 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Company's
operations and therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

3.7  New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and
the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023;

¥ Classification of kabilities as current or non-current {Amendments to I1AS 1 in January 2020) apply retrospectively for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 (as deferred vide amendments to IAS 1 in Oclober 2022} with earlier
application permitted. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified
as current. Convertible debt may need to be reclassified as 'current’. The standard also amends the aspect of classification
of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting perod to defer the
setlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity's expectation and discretion at the
reporting date to refinance or to reschedule payments on a long-term basis are no longer relevant for the classification of
a liability as current or non-current. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

. Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (amendment to IAS 1 in October 2022) aims to improve the information an entity
provides when its right to defer settlerment of a liability for at least twelve months is subject to compliance with conditions.
The amendment is also intended to address concerns about classifying such a liability as current or non-current. Only
covenants with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current
or non-current. Covenants with which the company must comply after the reporting date (i.e, future covenants) do not affect
a liability's classification at that date. However, when non-current liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies will
now need to disclose information to help users understand the risk that those liabiliies could become repayable within 12
months after the reporting date. The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024, with earlier application permitted. These amendments also specify the transition requirements for companies
that may have early-adopted the previously issued but not yet effective 2020 amendments to IAS 1 (as referred above).

. Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the Board has issued amendments
on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help companies provide useful accounting policy
disclosures. The key amendments to 1AS 1 include:

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves immaterial
and as such need not be disclosed; and

- darifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves
material to a company's financial statements.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on the application

of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.
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4.1

42

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) infroduce a new definition for accounting estimates clarifyng
that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendents
also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which
the company applies the amendments.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) narow the scope
of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning
liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognized from the beginning of the earliest
comparative pericd presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to retained eamings or other
components of equity at that date. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 with earlier application permitted.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) adds subsequent measurement
requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements to be accounted for as a sale. The amendment
confirms that on initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments when it measures a lease liability
arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction. After initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements
for subsequent accounting of the lease liability such that it recognizes no gain or loss relating to the right of use it retains.
A seller-lessee may adopt different approaches that satisfy the new requirements on subsequent measurement. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with earier application permitted.
Under IAS 8, a seller-lessee will need to apply the amendments retrospectively to sale-and-leaseback transactions entered
into or after the date of initial application of IFRS 18 and will need to identify and re-examine sale-and-leaseback transactions
entered into since implementation of IFRS 16 in 2019, and potentially restate those that included variable lease payments.
If an entity (a seller-lessee) applies the amendments arising from Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback for an earlier
period, the entity shall disclose that fact.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting
for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not
businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the previous
financial year.

Property and equipment
a) Owned assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciafion and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except
for capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost less impairment, if any. All expenditures connected with specific assets
incurred during installation and construction period are camied under capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other subseqguent costs including repair and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss by applying the straight-line method, whereby the cost of an asset is
written off over its estimated useful life. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if required, at each
reporting date.
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43

4.4

4.41

4.4.2

Depreciation on fixed assets is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use. No depreciation is charged
far the manth in which the asset is disposed off.

The residual value, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each reporting peried and adjusted, if appropriate,
to reflect the current best estimate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets includes software with a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method taking into
account residual value, if any, at the rate specified in note 5 to these financial statements. Amortization is charged from the
date the asset is available for use while in the case of assets disposed off, it is charged till the date of disposal. The useful
lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Financial instruments

Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- measured at amortised cost.

Afinancial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FWTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income

at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method, and impairment are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, On
de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified 1o the
statement of profit or loss.

Equity Investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income

at FVOCI in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Othernet gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are never reclassified to the staterment of profit or loss.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
at FVTPL interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets
measured at
amortised cost

These assets are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, and
impairment are recegnised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial assets
All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to
the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprises of loans and receivables that are financial

assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets. The Company derecognises the financial
assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel expires or it transfers the rights to receive the
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4.4.3

444

4.5

451

contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the finanial assets
are fransferred or it neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control over the transferred asset.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also offset
and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when permitted by the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the respective
coniractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company
derecognises the financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. Financial liability other
than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest
rate method.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured
at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of defaull ocourring over the expected life of
the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experence and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information,

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a
reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The
maximum period considersd when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed
to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the Gross carrying amount of
the assets.
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4.5.2

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessmentwit respect
to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.,

Based on the management assessment no ECL was required since the Company's financial assets at amortized cost are
held with related parfies or counterparties with low credit risk. Further, ECL calculated on Trade Debts was not required as
the amount assessed was immaterial to the financial statement.

Nen-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewsd at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss,

Revenue recognition

- Remuneration for management services and asset investment advisory services are recognized on an accrual basis
by applying pre-defined remuneration percentage on daily net asset value of the respective funds. The fee so charged
does not exceed the limit prescribed in the NBFC Regulations / Voluntary Pension System Rules 2005.

- Realised gains / losses on sale of investments is recognized in the statement of profit or loss at the time of sale.

- Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Retum on bank deposits, mark-up on term finance certificate, mark-up on letter of placements and mark-up on
commercial papers are recognized on time proportionate basis by using effective rate of interest.

- Commission income from open end funds is recognized at the time of sale of units.

- Commission income and share of profit from management of discretionary and non discretionary client portfolios is
recognized as services are rendered.

Staff retirement benefits - Staff Provident Fund

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all of its permanent employees. The Company and
employees make equal monthly contributions to the fund at the rate of 7.33 percent of the basic salary.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the outflow can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate,

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in that case

it is recognized in equity or other compreheansive income respectively,
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Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under presumptive / final tax
regime at the applicable tax rates and remaining income streams chargeable at current rate of taxation under the normal
tax regime after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities used for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is measured at the rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit or taxable temporary differences will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and / or carry-forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss.

410 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes include cash in hand, current and deposit accounts held with banks,
running finance facilities availed by the Company (if any), which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company's cash management,

411 Earnings per share

Eamings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit after tax for the year by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year.

412 Dividend and other appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in financial statements in the periods in which these are approved.
413 Leases

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets, The Company recognizes lease liabiliies to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right 1o use the underlying assets,

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets atthe commencament date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of ight-of-use assets includes the amount of lzase liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-Use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilties measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incenlives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guaranteed.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interast and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with | opti

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option io terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms of one to five years. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew, That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the
Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business stratagy).

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of Company's head office and branches due

to the significance of these assets to ils operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable period (i.e., three to five
years} and there will be a significant negative effect on operations if a replacement is not readily available,

Note  NELEZINN N

(Rup

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 113,205,609 146,269,405
Right-of-use assets 52 162,061,005 194,099,697
Capital work-in-progress - advance against capex 5.3 387,400 778,871

275,654,014 341,147,973
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51  Operating fixed assets

Lease hold

Improvemaent

At January 01, 2022

Cost 133,230,064 22,960,018 B6,198,107 39,490,149 281,878,336
Accumulated depreciation 138,003,819) [B,146,263) (68,391,697) (21,067,153) (135,608,933)
Net book value 95,226,245 14,813,755 17,806,410 18,422,995 146,269,405
Year ended December 31, 2022

Opening net book value 95,226,245 14,813,755 17,806,410 18,422,995 146,269,405
Additions - . 3,557,057 . 3,557,057
Disposals - Cost 2 - - (24,209,324) (24,200,324)
Disposals - Accumulated Depreciation 17,103,660 17,103,660
Depreciation charge for the year (13,023,917} (2,053,975) (12,041,027) (2,396,270) (29,515,189)
Clasing nel bock value 82,202,328 12,759,780 5322840 __ 8,921,061 _

At December 31, 2022

Cost 133,230,064 22,960,018 B9,755,164 15,280,625 261,226,071
Accumulated depreciation (51,027,736) (10,200,238) (B0,432,T24) (6,359,764) (148,020,462)
Net beok valug 12,759, 621, 113,205,609
Depreciation rate % per annum 0% 10% 25% 20%

At January 01, 2021

Cost 133,230,064 20,457 942 B4, 169 140 50,967,599 28E,824,745
Accumulated depreciation (24,979,902) [6.473,778) (57,885,302 (26,027, 464) (116,266,445)
Net book value 108,250,162 13.084.165 26,283,830 24.040.135 172,658,300
Year ended December 31, 2021

Cpening net book value 108,250,162 13,964,165 26,263,839 24,040,135 172,556,300
Additions - 3,247,000 4,788,973 10,008,750 1B,045,722
Dispasals - Cost 5 (745.923) (2,760,006) (21,486.200) (24,992,129)
Disposals - Accumuiated Depraciation 207 654 2,716,804 12,732,368 16,656,826
Depreciation charge for the year {13,023,917) (1,880,139} (13,223.200) (6,872,058) (34,999,.314)
Closing net bock value 95,226,245 14,613,755 17,806,410 18,422,995 146,260,405
At December 31, 2021

Cost 133,230,065 22,960,018 BE, 198,107 39.490.149 382,067 427
Accumulated depreciation (38,003,818) (8,145,263 ) (68,391,607 (21,067,153) (245,786,022}
el beok value _GERNT _ 14 815755 _ 1P BOEATG _ BATI09 145, 269.4
Depreciation rate % per annum 0% 0% 25% 20%
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5.1.1 Details of operating fixed assets disposed of:

Description Cost | Accumulated | Mestbookvalue | Sale proceeds Gain/ (loss) | Mode of disposal Particuars of buyer
(Rup

Wagon R VAL 1,089,890 22,052 367,836 1,280,000 912,162 | Third party via bid | Muhammad Talha Usman

Handa Civic 24239680 | 1817970 605,990 2,900,000 2,294,10 | Third partyvia bid | Noman Usman

Suuzuki Swit 1499510 | 1124633 74877 1,520,000 1,145,123 | Third party via bid | Tahir Bial Sakem

Honda Civic 242960 | 1,817,960 505991 2,840,000 2334000 | Employee viabid | Malik Zafar Javaid

Toyota Gorolls Gi 1886625 | 1,414,960 471,656 2,425,000 1,953,344 | Third party via bid | Syed Shiraz Ahmed

Honda City 1920870 | 1,032,075 B97,895 2,450,000 1,552,105 Employee viabid | Raja Kamran Nazir

Honda Ciy 1921750 | 1,086,962 864,788 2,450,000 1585211 | Employee viabid | Atam Elahi Usmani

Henda Civic 2,423,960 1,817,970 605,990 2,900,000 2,794,010 Third party via bid | Musa Raza Kazmi

Wagon R VL 1,068,740 802,305 267435 1,570,000 1,302,565 | Employon viabid | Ajaz Al

Wapon RVAL 1,063,740 802,305 267435 1,550,000 1,282,565 | Third party via bid | Muhamemad Talha Usman

Wapon R VAL 1,069,740 802,305 267435 1,570,000 1,302,565 | Third party via bid | Syed Blal Ahmed Alvi

Toyota Gorolla Gi 1886620 | 1,438,555 448,074 2,575,000 2126926 | Third party via bid | Al Raza Kazmi

Wagan RVAL 1,083,880 BIT47 W2ATI 1,560,000 287,527 | Third party via bid | AR Raza Kazmi

Honda Civic 2423960 | 1636173 TRT.TET 3,300,000 251213 | Third partyvia bid | Musa Raza Kazmi

As at December 31, 2022 24,209,334 | 17,103,660 7105664 290000 | 23884335

As ol December 31, 2021 24403335 | 15,068,002 9335303 25644400 | 16,209,007

5.1.2 The cost of fully depreciated assets as at December 31, 2022 is Rs. 54.448 (2021: Rs.38.658) million and are still
in active use of the company.

| 2022 | 2021 |

5.2 Right-of-use assets

As at January 01 194,099,697 225,017,100
Moadification of lease - 2,930,310
Depreciation expense (32,038,692) (33,847.713)
As at December 31 162,061,005 194,099,697

5.3 Advance against Capital Work in Progress

Opening Balance 778,871 1,611,934
Additions 4,402,374 21,412,606
Transfers (4,793,845) (22,245,669)
Closing Balance 387,400 778,871
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7.2 This represents payment made in respect of club membership fee for ten years to Karachi Boat Club and amortizes
[ 2022 | 2021 over the period.
:' 8. BALANCES DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER

G e MANAGEMENT - RELATED PARTIES

At January 01

Cost 62,918,580 58,718,633

Accumulated amortization (51,924,570) (46,482,794 )

Net book value 10,994,010 12,235,839

8.1 Balances due from funds under management

¥ ded De ber 31
mranee amber Open end Funds(Collective Investment Schemes)

Opening net book value 10,994,010 12,235,839 JS Value Fund 14,349,827 14,349,827
Additions during the year 504,000 4,199,947 JS Growth Fund 36,036,965 37,888,132
Amortization for the year (5,028,113) f5.44l 776) JS Large Cap Fund 11,643,823 11,861,856
Clasing net book value ,469, 9594, Unit Trust of Pakistan 17,044,374 17,181,228
JS Income Fund 5,329,790 5,214,940
At Decombinr31 JS Islamic Fund 5,763,843 6,109,768
JS Fund of Funds 537,684 536,215
Cost 63,422,580 62,918,580 i : : ’
Accumulated amortization 56,952,683 51,924,570 SEHon Sevi Ead $,390,895 3,587,936
Net book value _LG_JEB'H!TL _LEI'QM_D"IUL Islamic Pension Savings Fund 1,824,387 1,915,593
——— S JS Islamic Income Fund 2,533,612 1,478,388
Amortization rate % per annum JS Cash Fund 15,620,427 4,391,018
20% 20% JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds 314 2,682
JS Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 55,936 365.048
J§ Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 3 934 14,562
6.1  The cost of fully amortized assets as at December 31, 2022 is Rs. 41.42 million (2021: Rs. 33.86 million). JS Mation Picture Fund M 81,087
JS Islamnic Daily Dividend Fund 476,709 179,074
m- JS Microfinance Sector Fund 2,782,622 -
. 2021 JS Rental REIT Fund 3,850,715 2
(Ru ) JS Government Securities Fund 3,167,781 -
7. LONG-TERM LOANS AND PREPAYMENTS - SECURED 124,610,226 105,157,354
tg:;‘:sclﬂrer:.ﬁlggﬁ?:n 791 [ 1&;??:235;} [ {glgg;g) 8.2 Bal'?\nces due from funds undler maqagemgn} primarily represent accrual of management fee, sales tax and federal
1,168,324 76.277 excise duty. Management fee is received within next month from the date of accrual.
Long term prepayment 7.2 3,935,342 3,935,342 Nole
Less: Amortisation (2,557,202) (2,163,668)
Less: Current portion 393,534 (393,534 ) 9. LOANS AND ADVANCES
¥ 1,378,740
Current portion of long-term loans to employees -secured 7 317,533 343,636
2,152,930 1.454,417
Unsecured advances to
- employees [ 1,793,687 ‘ [ 2,231,362 ‘
7.1 These represent loans given to employees for purchase of motor vehicles loans and staff personal loans recoverable - suppliers 225,000 683,501
through deduction from salaries over varying periods from four to five years. These loans are granted in accordance 2,018,687 2 914 863
with the terms of employment. The motor vehicle loans are secured by way of title to the motor vehicles being held e P
in the name of the Company and staff personal loan are secured by way of staff provident fund balance and these T 2,336,220 ~ 3,268,499
loans are carrying mark-up at rates ranging from 5.10% to 15.71% (2021: 3.58% to 8.17%) per annum. The Company
has not discounted these loans at market interest rates as the effect of such discounting is not material to these 10. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
ﬂ:]anmal e;lg;zmnts. The company reimburses mark up on house loans over and above KIBOR rate not exceeding Gaian Takion fant B olhar ecaniabla tham relatad pariss 101 66,188,638 32,574,180
B:Lap) i Security deposits 10.2 5,097,781 4,548,956
Prepayments 14,897,422 12,871,063
The maximum aggregate amount due from employees outstanding at the end of any month during the year was Others 10.3 9,459,727 6,962,212
Rs. 1.49 (2021: Rs.0.43) million. 97,643,568 56,956,411

Provision against other receivable from related parties 10.4 (296,353 ) (296,353
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10.1 This represents balances due from related parties on account of rent and other expenses incurred on their behalf. It
also includes Rs.14.12 (2021: Rs.3.087) million of expenses incurred on the formation cost on behalf of funds under
management.

10.2  This includes 2,34 million (2021 : Nil) security deposit with related parly i.e. JS Rental REIT Fund.

10.3  This includes 4.08 million (2021 : 308) pertaining to formation cost of upcoming funds under management.

Note  ECTZIN M)

(Rupees)

10.4 Movement in provision against other receivable

Opening balance 296,353
Provision made during the year =
Closing balance 296,353

296,353
206.353

11. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS
Investments by category

At fair value through profit or loss'

Investment in units of mutual funds 11.1
under management - related parties

Unlisted debt security - Term Finance Certificate 1.2
[5.000 certificates (2021: 5,000 certificates)]

1,034,071,682
125,000,000

1,227,102,015

125,000,000
5

1159071682 ~ 1.352.102.015

11.1  Units of mutual funds - ‘At fair value through profit or loss’ (related parties)

Number of units 2022 2021
2022 2021 Average cost Fair value Fair value
(Rupees)

2,882,101 - J5 Microfnance Sector Fund 269,685,303 269,953,513 -

2,152,338 3 U5 Islamic Income Fund 240,000,000 240,093,268 g
22721 213852 | | J5 Islamic Pension Savings Fund - Debt 5,912,752 6,357,981 95,635,857
1976 222,303 | | JS lslamic Pension Savings Fund - MM 445,594 499,947 50136078
61437 137,349 | | S Pension Savings Fund Debt 19,884,179 22095922 44,453,001
85,028 177,463 | | IS Pension Savings Fund Money Market 22,163,478 25,107,158 46,257 514
148,003 419,093 | | JS Cash Fund 15,149,562 15,170,283 44533403
1,000,000 1,000,000 | | JS Mation Piciure Fund 21,520,000 22,900,000 21,520,000
101,756 147,900 | | JS Islamic Pension Savings Fund - Equity 64,762,008 50,630,583 94,130,938
141420 205210 | | JS Pension Savings Fund Equity 64,750,707 57,500,087 93,957,510
5317939 3,373,965 | | JS Fund of Funds 306,642,351 309,876,329 199,603,765

50,392 - JSIHFOF - ICPAP-T 5,000,000 4,886,611 -
- 461,361 | | JS Income Fund - - 465,362,212
- 61443 | | JSIHFOF - Mutanasib - - 3182770
. 3,175/696 | | IS Growth Fund - - 527,229,067
1,035,916,024 1,034,071,682 1,227,102.015

Unrealised loss on

remeasurament at fair value - nel (1,844.342) - -

1,034,071,682 1,034,071,682 1,227,102,015
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11.2  Investment in Debt Security - Term Finance Certificate
This represents investment in AA+ rated, unsecured, subordinated, perpetual and non-cumulative term finance certificate

of Bank AL Habib Limited, having face value of Rs.5,000 per certificate and carmies profit at the rate of & Months KIBOR
+1.50% per annum since 2018,

Note  EXZZINNN NEIINE

12 Long term investment

Shares of Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
at fair value through profit or loss 12.1 265,000 -

121 "Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) has converied into a Self-Regulatory Organization (SRO) upon the
directive of SECP and thus, is required to be registered under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017. Since it was
converted into a SRO, the capttal requirements were met from all the Asset Managemeant Companies (AMCs) who are
also the members of MUFAP. All AMCs contributed equally towards the share capital of MUFAP by subscribing for 26,500
shares at a par value of Rs. 10 each, the Company also subscribed for the shares of MUFAP being its member.

OCCIN 2022 | 2021
{ )

13. CASHAND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 57,262 100,124
Cash at bank in:

Current accounts 549,733 | 560,933

Saving accounts 13.1 1,681,818 25475,223

12,231,551 26,045,156

288,813 26,145,280

13.1  These camy mark-up at the rates ranging from 11.75% to 14.50% (2021: 5.50% to 11.75%) per annum. It includes Rs.
9.850 (2021: Rs. 23.694) million held with JS Bank Limited (the Parent Company)
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14. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital

| a2 | 22 | a2 | 202 |

Number of Shares er of Shares
200,000,000 200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Convertiblepreference shares
50,000,000 50,000,000 of Rs.10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000
250,000,000 250,000,000 2,500,000,000 2,500,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

a2 | om | a2 | 2

Number of S Number of Shari

21,250,000 21,250,000  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as 212,500,000 212,500,000
fully paid in cash

Fulty paid ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
700,000 700,000 issued on amalgamation with Corfidence 7,000,000 7,000,000
Financial Services Limited

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as

78,050,000 78,050,000 Rully peid borus shares 780,500,000 780,500,000
Shares repurchased (2015: 19.8 million and

(38,225744) (38,225,744 ) 2019: 18.4 million) (382,257,440) (382,257 440)

61,774,256 61,774,256 617,742,560 617,742 560

14.1  As at year end, JS Bank Limited, the Parent Company, holds 52,236,978 i.e. 84.56% (2021: 52,236,978 i.e. B4.56%)
shares in the Company.

14.2 There is only one class of ordinary shares issued.

14.3  Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.
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15.
15.1

16.

16.2
17

GOVERNMENT GRANT
Movement of Government grant

Opening balance 1,301,172 4,604,021
Received during the year - -
Released to the statement of profit or loss (1,301,172) (3,302,649)
Closing balance - 1, 17,

Current Portion of Government Grant 152 - 1,301,172
Long - term Portion of Government Grant - e
1,301,172

The Government grant has been recorded against subsidized rate loan obtained to a refinance scheme introduced by
State Bank of Pakistan to provide working capilal loan al concessional mark-up rates for businesses (o finance salary
expense during the COVID-19 outbreak. The grant was conditional upon the fact that the Company would not terminate
any employee, due / owing to cash flow limitations, for a period of three months from the date of receipt of the first

tranche.
Note  EZZEN 2021
§ )

LONG-TERM FINANCING
- Salaries and Wages
Current maturity of long term financing - 38,778,533

15.1 = 38,778,533

In the year 2020, the Company had availed salary refinance facility from JS Bank Ltd. (the parent company) under the
State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) "Refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries to the workers and employees
of Business concem"” due to coronavirus pandemic for a period of two years and six months (inclusive of grace period
of six months). In the year, the Company obtained the loan in two tranches in August 2020 and October 2020. This
facility is secured by pledge of JS Income fund and JS Growth fund. This facility carries mark-up at concessional rate
af 3% per annum. Principal amount is payable in 8 equal quarterly installment and repayment of financing has been
started from January 2021.

During the year, the above facility has been setled in full.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Net deferred tax asset to the extent of Rs. 149.821 (2021: Rs. 173.684) million on accumulated losses of Rs. 516.635
(2021: Rs. 598.910) million has not been recognized in these financial statements as the management of the Company

is of the view that it is not probable, that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the foreseeable future against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be ulilised.
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18.1

19.1

2022 | 2021
LEASE LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities as on 01 January 268,805,459 282,124,167
Effect of lease modification - 214,516

Additions during the year - 8,557,200
Interest expense 27,332,371 30,274,605
Disposals during the year (3,720,234 ) (4,312,897
Rental payments !54,434.631 ) g48.052,1 32)
Lease liabilities as on 31 December ,982, ,805,4!
Less: Current portion of lease liabilities (24,248,384) (33,619,784
Non Current portion of lease liabilities 213,734,571 235,185,675

The liability against assets subject to finance lease represents the lease entered into with a Modaraba for 3 different
vehicles (2021; 13 vehicle). The perodic lease paymeants include profit rates ranging from KIBOR 3M to 6M plus 1% to
1.5% with floor of 7% to 7.5% and ceiling of 20% (2021: KIBOR 3M to 6M plus 1% to 1.5% with floor of 7% to 7.5% and
ceiling of 20% ) per annum. The Company, shall subject to compliance with the conditions specified in the lease agreements,
purchase the assets from the lessor. There are no financial restrictions in the lease agreements.

OGO 2022 | 2021

ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Federal excise duty payable 191 92,244 587 92,244 587
Sales tax payable 22,703,143 18,365,338
Staff bonus accrued 17,000,007 16,901,259
Accrued expenses 15,527,028 15,326,094
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 19.2 11,286,114 11,286,114
Salary payable 320,746 2,047,965
Fee and commission payable 5,971,775 1,868,828
Term finance - salaries and wages - 1,301,172
Other liabilities 8,427,810 8,542,671

173,481,210 167,684.028

This represents amount payable against Federal Excise Duty (FED) on management fees received / receivable from
the Funds under management. The amount is being held for payment to Federal Board of Revenue on the basis of stay
order of the Honorable High Court of Sindh dated September 04, 2013. The stay order was granted as a result of petiion
filed by asset management companies on the forum of MUFAP against the amendment in Finance Act, 2013 which
levied FED on the fees received by asset management companies from funds under management.

The Honorable Sindh High Court in its decision dated July 16, 2016 maintained the previous order passed against other
constitutional petition whereby levy of FED is declared to be 'Ulira Vires’ the Constitution. On September 23, 2016, the
Federal Government has filed an appeal against the said order in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) and
thus, the previous balance of FED has not been reversed.

Further, the Federal Government vide Finance Act, 2016 has excluded asset management companies and other
non-banking finance companies from charge of FED on their services, Accordingly, no provision for FED is made from
July 01, 2016 onwards.
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19.2 In view of promulgation of Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2014, wherein the financial institutions have also been
brought into definition of Industrial establishments, the Company has maintained an aggregated provision against Sindn
Workers Welfare Fund as the year end amounting to Rs.11.286 (2021: Rs.11.286) milion. The Company s under
litigation with Sindh Revenue Board vide Constitution Petition No. 1005 dated February 13, 2019, filed before the
Honorable Sindh High Court, which is a pending adjudication.

20. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
20.1 Contingencies

20.1.1 In respect of the appeals filed by the Company before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR (Appeals)] against
orders passed for tax years 2006 and 2009 against demand of Rs. 162 million and Rs. 66 million respectively, the CIR
(Appeals) had not accepted the basis of additions by tax authorities and set aside both the orders in respect of allocation
of expenses between various sources of income for fresh proceedings with the directions to apportion the common
expenditure according to actual incurrence of expenditure to the various sources of income.

In respect of the above said order of CIR (Appeals) for tax years 2006 and 2009, the Company filed second appeal
before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) in respect of apportionment of expenses. The ATIR vide order
dated April 20, 2017 deleted the additions on proration of expenses for tax year 2006 however, confirmed the CIR(A)'s
order whereby CIR(A) remanded back / set-aside the issue of apportionment of expenses.

The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue vide order dated May 21, 2016 deleted the additions of tax amortization of
management rights and remanded back the issues of disallowed provisions and advertisement expenses for the tax
year 2009,

The tax authorities issued orders giving effect (hereinafter referred collectively as ‘appeal effect orders’) to the order of
CIR (Appeals) for both tax years 2006 and 2009 whereby demands for these tax years were reduced to Rs. 77.33 million
and Rs. 59.93 million respectively. As the allocation of expenditure in the said appeal effect orders was not made according
to actual incurrence of expenditure to the various sources of income, therefore, the Company again filed appeals before
the CIR (Appeals) against the said orders,

In respect of second round of appeal filed by the Company before CIR (Appeals) against appeal effect orders for tax
years 2006 and 2009, the CIR (Appeals) for tax year 2008 confirmed apportionment of expenditure made by the tax
authorities in appeal effect order, however, adjustment of allowable expenses were set aside. For the tax year 2009,
CIR (Appeals) had set aside the appeal effect order in entirety for fresh assessment, which is yet to be made by tax
authorities.

The CIR [Appeals) also rectified the order passed by his predecessor for the tax year 2006, whereby the addition
regarding the portion of capital gain included in dividend received from mutual funds was held deleted. Resulted appeal
effect order reflects refund of Rs.29 million. The tax authorities have filed an appeal before ATIR against said order of
CIR (Appeals) in respect of deletion of addition regarding the portion of capital gain included in dividend, The ATIR vide
order dated December 07, 2016 set-aside with the direction that the ACIR should examine the issue in the light of FBR
Circular letter dated September 10, 2002

In respect of tax year 2006, management contends, based on views of its tax advisor, that amendment of assessment
for such tax year by tax authorities is time barred. Accordingly, the Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue. The ATIR is of the view that the amendment of assessment is not time bared however, tha
ATIR deleted the addition of tax amortization of management right vide order dated February 10, 2017.

20.1.2 Order under section 122{1)/(5) dated December 30, 2017 for the tax year 2015 passed by the DCIR created demand
of Rs.40 million against which the Company has filed an appeal before the CIR(A). The DCIR considered our request
for rectification and passed order under section 221 dated February 27, 2017 as a result of the above order the demand
reduced to Rs.36.904 million. The CIR{A) vide order dated May 6, 2019 partly considered our submissions put before
hirn. The DCIR passed appeal effect order dated February 17, 2020 determined refund of Rs 30,66 million. The company
submitted appeal before the CIR (Appeal) against the appeal effect order. The Company also submitted appeal before
the ATIR against the order of the CIR{A).
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The DCIR passed order under section 122(1)/(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 dated June 23, 2014 and reduced
the refund claim of Rs.8.499 milion to Rs.3.102 million for the tax year 2012. The leamed CIR (Appeal) vide order dated
May 06, 2019 confirmed the ACIR's order and held that the appeal was not entertainable being bamred by time limitation
for the tax year 2012. The Company submitted appeal before the ATIR against the order of the CIR(A).

20.2 Commitments in respect of:
Use of name and advisory payment - a related party 15,000,000 15,000,000
21. REMUNERATION FROM FUNDS
UNDER MANMAGEMENT - NET
Open end Funds
JS Value Fund - 11,292,335
J8 Growth Fund 46,061,005 52,375,396
Unit Trust of Pakistan 21,903,348 24,557,309
JS Income Fund 18,831,841 24,689,180
JS Islamic Fund 7,194,026 10,792,322
JS Fund of Funds 200,600 145,866
JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds 17,544 123,410
JS Pension Savings Fund 5,550,598 6,296,600
JS Islamic Pension Savings Fund 1,978,920 3,304,705
JS Cash Fund 46,103,655 18,051.790
JS Islamic Income Fund 12,660,967 6,224 308
J8 Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 2,519,868 2,823,711
JS Large Cap Fund 7,797,611 10,803,939
JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds - 3 40,865 762,416
JS Motion Picture Fund 410,987 1,257,508
JS Islamic Daily Dividend Fund 3,267,247 1,454 507
JS Microfinance Sector Fund 13,871,010 -
JS Momentum Factor Exchange Traded Fund 204,522 -
JS Rental REIT Fund 3,891,440 -
JS Government Securities Fund 3,167,781 -
195,673,835 174,955,322
195,673,835 174,955,322
Less: Sindh sales tax F22,511,149[ (20,127,603 )
211 Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations and the NBFC Rules, the management company of the Fund is entitled
to an accrued remuneration at the maximum rate of management fee chargeable to Collectve Investment Scheme
within allowed expense ratio limit. An Asset Management Company shall be entitled to an accrued remuneration that
has been verified by the trustee and is paid in arrears. During the year ended December 31, 2022 the Company has
charged management fee at the rates ranging from 0.00% to 2.00% (2021: 0.00% to 2.00%).
21.2 Total net asset value of the Funds under management as at December 31, 2022 amounts to Rs.44.226 (2021: Rs.23.686)

billion.

Note
22, COMMISSION FROM OPEN END
FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT
Unit Trust of Pakistan - 14,752
JS Islamic Fund - 89,058
JS Fund of Funds 19,713 48,511
JS Value Fund - 35,800
JS Growth Fund - 9,188
JS Islamic Income Fund 80,441 89,021
JS Income Fund - 70,278
JS Pension Savings Fund 11,573 47,710
JS Cash Fund 2,520,875 41,373
J5 Large Cap Fund - 19,563
J§ Microfinance Sector Fund 240,796 -
JS Islamic Daily Dividend Fund 122,436 -
221 2,995,834 465,252
221 This represents gross commission income eamed by the Company on account of sale of units made on behalf of the
funds under management.
23. DIVIDEND INCOME
At fair value through profit or loss - Funds under Management
JS Income Fund 1,217,265 4,714,357
J& Cash Fund 1,833,753 35,198
JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Fund - 2,161,415
J§ Microfinance Sector Fund 4,244,163 -
JS Islamic Daily Dividend Fund 1,050,658 1,288,568
8,345,839 .199.539
24, REMUNERATION AND SHARE OF PROFIT FROM MANAGEMENT OF DISCRETIONARY CLIENT PORTFOLIOS

AND NON DISCRETIONARY CLIENT PORTFOLIO

This represents commission income and share of profit eared by the Company from management of discretionary
portfolios and non-discrationary portfolio. Currently, the Company is managing Twelve (2021: Nine) discretionary and
One (2021: One) non-discretionary partfolios. The total cost and total market value of the unsetiled client portfolios as
at December 31, 2022 was Rs.570.30 (2021: Rs.657.17) million and Rs.556.12 (2021: Rs.630.05) million respectively.

21.3 Sindh Sales Tax is calculated at the rate of 13%
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25.

251

25.2

253

254

DO 2022 | 2021

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 117,284,029 114,835,304
Directors' meeting fee 850,000 800,000
Staff retirement benefits 252 6,898,403 6,641,948
Staff bonus 17,000,004 16,901,256
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 5,028,113 5,441,776
Depreciation on property and equipments 5.1 29,515,189 34,999,314
Depreciation on right of use assets 52 32,038,692 33,847,713
Printing and stationery 1,399,399 2,617,921
Rent, rates, taxes and maintenance 11,670,236 4,982,387
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 18,139,107 14,144,096
Share registrar / fransfer agent remuneration 483,367 885,004
Postage and telephone 1,404,541 1,907,847
Legal and professional 14,578,203 18,893,413
Fees and subscription 13,470,837 11,486,882
IT services 22,069,418 23,077,142
Utilities 7,510,563 7,969,414
Office security 966,368 1,097,158
Insurance 7.842,792 8,434,118
Newspaper 80,796 32,542
Royalty Fees 253 15,000,000 15,000,000
Shariah advisory fee 254 152,105 102,076
Auditors’ remuneration 255 2,526,186 1,819,530
Training and development 113,851 1,000,683
Miscellaneous expenses 4,123,381 5,788,965
Provision against other receivable from related parties 10.4 -

330,145,579 333,002,842
Less: Reimbursement of Salaries & Admin Expenses 251 (11,222,001) (6,244,966 )
Total - net of reimbursement 318,9=23l,578 326,757,876

This represent reimbursement of salaries & admin expenses from funds under management @ 0.1% on
certain funds.

Based on un-audited financial statements of the Fund, the investments out of provident fund have been made in
accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Rules formulated for this purpose.

This represents the "Use of Name” on account of use of "JS" as a part of Company's name and "Advisory" fees paid to
Mr. Jahangir Siddiqui (associated person) under two separate agreements dated August 01, 2006. His current address
is House no. D-185, Clifton, Karachi.

This represents shariah advisory payment being made for consultation for JS Islamic Pension Savings Fund, JS Islamic
Fund, JS Islamic Income Fund, JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds series, JS Islamic Daily Dividend Fund and JS Islamic
Dedicated Equity Fund,

118 AnNUAL REPORT 2022 .

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Note
255 Auditors' remuneration
Annual audit fee 1,370,401 1,100,000
Fee for review of the staterment of compliance on Code
of Corporate Governance 75,000 75,000
Fee for review of half yearly financial statements 319,000 290,000
1,764,401 1,465,000
Out of pocket expenses 264,660 219,750
Sindh sales tax 162,325 134,780
2,191,386 1,819,530
Other assignments 334,800
__ 2526186 __ 1619,530 _
26. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 49,922,914 42,863,908
Staff retirement benefits 25.2 2,082,636 2,065,180
Utilities 2,326,538 2,255,393
Postage and telephone 440,047 575,401
Office security 444,195 464,691
Printing and stationery 70,602 176,746
Rent, rates, taxes and maintenance 8,629,410 8,915,740
IT services 3,873,059 4,064,576
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance 679,250 234,903
Fees and commission 15,518,648 5,159,830
Advertisermnent, selling and marketing expense 13,353,765 8,539,376
Miscellaneous expenses 712,025 729,314
98,053,089 76,045,058
Less: Reimbursement of selling and distribution expenses  26.1 (61,145,169) (70,974,276)
36,907,920 5.070.782

26.1 As per circular 11/2019 dated July 05, 2019 of SECP, that superseded Circular No. 40 of 2016, Circular No. 05, of 2017
and Circular No, 05, of 2018. In this circular, selling and marketing expenses are allowed to be charged on all categories
of open ended mutual funds managed by the Asset Management Company except for Fund of Funds. These expenses
are counted in the Total Expense Ratio Cap of the Fund.
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Note
27. FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank charges 119,131 256,101
Interest expenses on Term Finance (Wages & Salaries) 448,162 1,661,692
Financial charges for utilization of running finance facility
from JS Bank Limited - 2,207,695
Financial charges against lease liability 27,332,391 30,274,605
27,899,684 34,400,093
28. OTHER INCOME
| from fir ial t
Mark-up on loans to employees 141,774 38,338
Liabilities no longer required written back 17,713,897 5,812,802
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 51.1 23,884,335 16,309,097
Gain on termination of lease - 2,266,125
Rental income 281 2,536,783 -
Others 1,150,850 217,468
45427638 24543830

28.1 Thisrepresentrental income from the tenant for the portion of JS Investments Limited's office premises under sub-lease.

T 22 | oo
29. TAXATION - Net
Current 7,543,616 11,340,313

7,543,616 11,340,313

29.1 The Company computes tax provisions based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensure that
sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available. Accordingly, the management of the Company has assessed
the sufficiency of the tax provisions and believes that the tax provisions are sufficient to reflect the actual tax liability of
the Company.

29,2 Theincome tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to and including the assessment year 2002-2003
(financial year ended June 30, 2002). The income tax assessments for the tax years 2003 to 2005, 2007, 2008 and
2010 to 2021 have been filed under self assessment scheme and are deemed to be finalized under section 120 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The details of tax years 2006 and 2009 have been described in note 18.1 above.

29.3 The numerical reconciliation is not provided as the tax charge of the Company mainly comprises of minimum tax and
tax at reduced rates under the relevant sections of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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30. LOSS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted

Loss for the year after taxation (149,050,713) (300,075,584 )

Mumber of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 61,774,256 61,774,256

Loss per share (Rupees) (2.41) (4.86)

30.1 Diluted eamings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue
as at December 31, 2022 (2021: Nil) which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is
axercised.

31. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregale amounts charged in the financial statements in respect of the remuneration, including benefits to the
Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives of the Company are as follows:

Executives

Managerial remuneration 19,200,000 20,020,908 78,125,856 68,307 433
Bonus paid 3,000,000 - 7,943,057 8,750,562
Retirement benefits 1,407,360 1,472,663 5,162,996 4,484,794
Medical allowance 1,920,000 2,009,092 7,812,586 6,839,731
Other benefits & reimbt 1,085,577 508,701 7,582,766 5,268,177

26,612937 24,081,364 106,627,261 93,740,697
Number of persons 1 2 26 23

311 These represent executives as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017,

31.2 The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is provided with free use of company owned and maintained vehicle during
the year.

31.3 The Company may provide performance bonus to the Chief Executive Officer and executives. The individual entittements
are being reported on paid basis.

31.4 |n addition, meeting fees amounting to Rs.850,000 (2021: Rs.800,000) was paid to two non-executive directors for
meetings attended during the year (2021: two non-executive directors). The non-executive directors are not entitled to
any remuneration except meeting fees.

315 The number of persons does not include those who resigned during the year but remuneration paid to them is included
in the above amounts.
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32, TRANSACTIONS AND OUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of JS Bank Limited (Parent Company), Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (Ultimate Parent Company),
JS Global Capital Limited, the Funds under management and other companies with common directorship, staff provident
fund and key management employees. Contributions to the accounts in respect of staff retirement benefits are made
in accordance with terms of the contribution plans. Remuneration of the key management personnel are in accordance
with the terms of their employment. Other transaclions are carried out as per agreed terms, Transactions and balances

with related parties can be summarized below:

32.1 Transactions during the year
32.1.1 Funds under management

Remuneration - net of taxes
Commission received

Investments made

Investments disposed off / matured
Expenses incurred on behalf of funds
Expenses reimbured from funds
Dividend received

32.1.2 Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (JSCL)

Basis of relationship - Ultimate parent company

P of shareholding - JSCL holds 75.02% shares
of JS Bank Limited (JSBL)

Rent Paid
Reimbursement of annual subscription fee paid by JSCL
to World Economic Forum on behalf of the Company

32.1.3 JS Bank Limited (JSBL)
Basis of relationship - Parent pany
Percentage of shareholding - JSBL holds 84.56% shares
of the Company

Rent paid

Management fee sharing on distribution of mutual funds

Return on bank deposits

Running Finance Facility Obtained

Running Finance Facility Settled

Amount paid against Refinance Scheme for Salaries and Wages
Markup on Refinance Scheme for Salaries and Wages

Bank charges and Interest on Running Finance

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, FUNDS AND OTHER RELATED PARTIES

3214 A iated pany - Jahangir Siddiqui & Sons Limited (JSSONS)
Basis of relationship - C lirectorship of the Group

Reimbursements of expenses by the company
32.1.5 Associated company - Fakhr-e-Imdad Foundation (FIF)
Basis of relationship - common directorship of the Company

Reimbursements of expenses by the company
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173,162,686 154,827.719
2,995,834 465,252
6,528,827.69  1,972,704,001
6,711.365080  2.079.330,844
97,438,401 84,408,925
77.321,630 84,781,228
8,345,839 8.199.539
2022 | 2021

{Rupees)

150,000
5,073,750

2,853,114
1,890,784

40,092,979
448,162
116,196

297,169

375,000
8,319,375

2,679,488
2,858,326
1,835,887
340,844 067
340,844,067
40,092,980
1,611,544
2,257,843

558,385

720,000
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32.1.6 Associated company - EFU General Insurance
Basis of relationship - Ultimate parent company
P tage of shareholding - JSCL holds 21.10%

Insurance premium paid

32.1.7 Associated company - EFU Life Assurance
Basis of relationship - Ultimate parent company
Percentage of shareholding - JSCL holds 20.05%

Insurance premium paid
32.1.8 Associated y-JS | Limited Staff

Provident Fund (the Fund)
Basis of relationship - Employee benefit plan

Expenses paid on behalf of the company
Reimbursements of expenses by the company
Provident fund contributions made

32.1.9 Associated company - J§ Global Capital Limited (JSGCL)
Basis of relationship - JSBL holds 92.90% shares of JSGCL

Rent paid
Expenses paid on behalf of the company
Reimbursements of expenses by the company

32410 C Suk ial Shareholder - JS Lands (Private] Limited
Basis of Relationship - C Substantial Sharshold
Rent paid

Miscellaneous expense paid

32.1.11 Common Directorship - Future Trust
Basis of relationship - di

p ship of the Company

Amount paid under corporate social activity

32.1,12 Common Directorship - JS ABAMCO Commodities Limited
Basis of relationship - wholly owned subsidiary

(i} Merger with JS Investments Limited

Based on approvals received during the period JS ABAMCO
Commodities Limited was merged into JS Investments Limited
on March 31, 2021.

(i) Transfer upon merger of accumulated profit

32.1.13 Transactions with substantial shareholder of the
Ultimate Parent Company

Use of name and advisory for the period

2,712,115 3,419,409
1,819,795 1,979,292
= 377,435
238,487 63,880
8,981,039 8,707,128
11,827,222 11,264,022
472,939 769,997
278,200 1,015,815
14,375,003 28,850,100
19,070,412 16,566,212
- 10,000

- 37,500,000

- 29 536,455
15,000,000 15,000,000
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2022 | 2021
32.1.14 Transactions made with Directors and key personnel 32.2.9 Associated company - JS Global Capital Limited (JSGCL)
Remuneration 108,727,716 100,467,195 Other receivable 1,902,030 526,856
Directors’ fee 850,000 800,000 Rent ; 181,657 181,057
Disbursements of personal loans and advances 1,516,066 3,111,000 50 eoeivable e B
Repsymeniz of lodns Bng agvancss 100057 %17000 32.210 JS Investments Staff ' Provident Fund - (the Fund)
322 Balance outstanding with related parties Post-Employment benefit fund
32.21 Funds under management Other Recaivable 468 238,955
Basis of relationship - Funds d by the Company
32211 C Substantial Shar - J§ Lands (Private] Limited
Receivable from funds under management 167,863,360 126,934,470 Basis of Relationship - C Substantial Sharehold
Payable to funds under management 2,783,318 2,317,092
= Other payable 2,282 842 2,792,020
B a e e irts peavii vempesy Secury dapost 2023457 2023467
Percentage of shareholding - JSCL holds 75.02% shares gecizlvablilagamst seivance e 12"“;'232 19 536
of JS Bank Limited (JSBL) allolo | !
Other Payables = 75,000 32,212 Outstanding from key g t personnel
32.2.3 JS Bank Limited (JSBL) Receivable against loans and advances 936,009 700,000
Basis of i ip - Parent pany Directors’ fee payable 525,000 100,000
P ge of shareholding - JSBL holds 84.56% shares
of the Company
R 14737,017 23,694,615 32.2.13 Key management personnel and directors hold 5,000 shares in the Company
Other receivable 1,465,064 1,465,064 ) y ) : )
Rent receivable 2,409,149 2,409,149 323 Other balances outstanding with related parties as at the year end have been disclosed in the relevant balance
Other payable - 41,156,888 sheet notes.
3224 A;"’Tia:fed Gompany Jra.harlgir Siddiqui .& S:F;‘Ligge“d (JSSONS) 324 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
RIS 0K g Ly 5 P the activities of the Company. Management considers all members of the management team, including the Chief
Rent raceivable 2,486,352 2,488,352 Executive Officer and Directors lo be key management personnel.
32.2.5 Jahangir Siddiqui Securities Services Ltd 325 There are no transactions with key management personnel other than those under their terms of
Other Related Party employment.
Other Receivable - 29,887 _ : ; : - - G
Rent receivable 94,429 04,429 32.6 Details of the remuneration relating to Chief Executive officer and directors are disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements,
32.2.6 Associated Company - JS Private Equity (JSPE)
Basis of relationship - G s ial Sharehold 33. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Dther receivable 1,625,826 1,625,826 The Company functions as a single operaling segment. Income derived from the management fees of open end collective
Rent receivable 930,938 930,938 investment schemes and pension funds and that derived from the management of the discretionary portfolios account
for 99% and 1% (2021: 98% and 2% respectively of the total income eamed during the year.
32,27 Associated Company - Mahvash & Jahangir Siddiqui Foundati
P 34, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Basis of relationship - Common directorship of the Group
The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
Other receivable . 130,554 minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.
Rent raceivable 379,929 379,929
32.2.8 Associated company - Fakhr-e-imdad Foundation (FIF)
Basis of relationship - C i hip of the Group
Other receivable - 297,169
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The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Risks of the Company are being managed by the Company's management
in accordance with the approved palicies of the investment commitiee which provide broad guidelines for management

2022
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk

of the above mentioned risks. The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment e\ff;i;lg\:e Mare than three Not exposed to
and oversight of the Company's risk management framewaork. interest rate months and yield | interest Total
%) upto one year risk

The Company's financial assets primarily comprise of balance with banks, balances due from funds under management
- related parties, loans and advances -secured, other financial assets - investments classified as: 'At fair value through
profit or loss - units of mutual funds - related parties. The Company also has profit receivable, deposits and other
receivables. The Company's principal financial liabilities include accrued and other liabilities. instruments

On-balance sheet financial

341  Market risk
Financial assets

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of Long-term loans - secured 5.10% to “ % 42614 5 42,614
changes in market prices.

15.71%
The Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the internal risk Balances due from funds undsr
management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Board and regulations laid down by the SECF, the . ; ) N .
NBFC Regulations and the NBFC Rules. management - relaled parties 124,610,226 124,610,226
Loans and advances - secured 510%to - 317,533 - - 317,533
Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 15.71%

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables B - - 82,746,146 82,746,146
Other financial assets -

34.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Company, at present is not exposed to currency risk as all transactions are camied out

in Pak Rupees, investments classified as:
. A fair value through profitor loss — 6M KIBOR - . 125,000,000 1,034,071,662  1,159,071,682
34.1.2 Interest rate risk
+1.50%
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of Cash and bank balances 11.75%to 11,681,818 . P 606,995 12,288,813
changes in market interest rates.
14.50%
a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 11,681,818 317,533 125,042,614 1,242,035,040  1,379,077.014
Presently, the Company does not hold any variable profit based investment except balances with bank in deposit
account and investment in term finance certificate exposing the Company to cash flow profit rate risk. In case of Financial liabilities
100 basis points increase / decrease as on December 31, 2022, with all other variables held constant, the equity of Accrued and ofher lizbililies 4 - B 38,657,231 38,657,231
the Company and net profit for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs.1.411 million {2021: R
Rs.1.504 million). Lease liabilities 3,781,754 20466630 213734571 - 237,982,955
3,781,754 20,466,630 213,734,571 38,657,231 276,640,186
b) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
As at December 31, 2022, the Company does not hold any fixed rate instruments, therefore the Company is not On-balance sheet gap 7,900,064 (20,149,097)  (88,691,957) 1,203,377,818  1,102,436,828

exposed to fair value profit rate risk.

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the setilement date.

126 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 . 2 _ ANNUAL REPORT 2022 127 /,




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Management of credit risk

2021

Exposed to yield | interest rate risk ) ) . L ) .
E y The Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counterparties in accordance with the internal

Yield / Mors than three Not exposed to risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The Investment Committes
effecive | Uptothree | ™o ne g™ | More than | “u i verast Total closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Company’s counterparties (e.g, issuer of the instruments, brokers, banks,
interestrate |  months one year etc.) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a regular basis. In addition the credit

(%) upto one year risk

risk is also minimized due to the fact that the Company only invests in liquid equity and money market based collective

investment schemes (CIS).
On-balance sheet financial
- Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure lo credit risk
Financial assets at the reporting date is as follows:
Long-term loans - secured 31.58% to - - 76,277 - 76,277
817% 2022 | 2021
Balances due from funds under ( )
management - related parties : ) ) 105,157,354 105,157,354 Long-term loans - secured 42,614 76,277
Loans and advances - secured 3.58% to - 343,636 - = 343638 Balances due from funds under management - related parties 124,610,226 105,157,354
BATY Loans and advances - considered good 317,533 343,636
. Trade deposits and other receivables 82,746,146 44,085,348
Depasits, prepayments and Other financial assets - investments 1,159,071,682 1.352,102,015
other recaivables - - - 44,085,348 44,085,348 Cash and bank balances 12,288,813 26,145,280
Other financial assets - 1,379,077,014 1.527,909.910
investments classified as: Past due or impaired financial assets
At fair value through profitor loss ~ 6M KIBOR - - 125,000,000 1,227102015  1,352,102,015
+150% None of the financial assets are considered to be past due or impaired as at December 31, 2022 (2021: Nil)
Cash and bank balances 550%t0 25475223 - - 670,057 26,145,280 Concentration of the credit risk
8.75%
Cancentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
o Aioes kil AL TR iA. 150,910 whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company's total credit exposure.
Financial liabilities 74.98% (2021: 80.29%) of the financial assets aggregating to Rs.1,029.185 (2021: Rs.1,227.102) million are invested
Acch = _ _ in the Funds managed by the Company. The Company believes that underlying assets held by these funds are sufficiently
L apd oifer lablies 20005766 i diverse and therefore do not expose the Company to any major conceniration risk.
Lease liabilities 3,781,754 29,838,030 235,185,675 - 268805459
3,781,754 29,838,030 235,185,675 36,009,366 304,814,825 Details of the credit ratings of the bank balances are as follows:
On-balance sheet gap 21693469  (29.494,334) (110,109,398)  1,341,005408 1,223,085,085 2022 2021 2022 2021
3413 Other price risk Banks Ratings  Rating Agency
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market MCB AAA PACRA 0,52&1 0.3%
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual g;?,k Alfalah T; ;%@ gg%ﬁ ggg}ﬁ

investment its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market. The Company manages its exposure to
price risk by investing in Companies as per the trust deed.

In case of a 5% increase / decrease in rates determined by MUFAP as cn December 31, 2022, the equity of the Company
would increase / decrease by Rs.51.703 (2021: Rs.61.355) million, as a result of reduction / increase in unrealized gains
I {losses).

34.2 Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the inability of the issuers of the instruments, the relevant financial institutions or counter parties to
fulfil their obligations. There is a possibility of default of issuers of the instrument, financial institutions or counter parties.
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343 Liquidity risk 2022
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations associated with its Amortised
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the cost

possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabiliies earier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies

maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding to an adequate amount of committed Liabilities

credit faciliies and the ability to close out market positions due to the dynamic nature of the business. Accrued and other liabilities 38,657,231 38,657,231
Lease liabilities 237,982,955 237,982,955

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities 276,640,186 276,640,186

The table shown below analyses the Company’s financial iabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the confractual undiscounted

cash flows. At fair value through
profit and loss' -
held-for-trading
More than one
Carrying value menth upto three | months and upto '::’:vz':!"
Assets
) Long-term loans - secured 76,277 - & 76,277
Liabilities Balances due from funds under
management - related parties 105,157,354 - - 105,157,354
Accrued and Loans and advances - secured 343636 - - 343,636
other liabililies 38,657,231 38,65 Deposit, prepayments and
Lease liabilities 237,982,955 d 512 219 20,466, 630 213,734, 571 other receivables 44,085,348 - - 44,085,348
276,640,186 _1‘2E‘533‘ TA1A69,450 20,866,630 213,734,511 Other financial assets - investments - 1,352,102,015 . 1352,102.015
Cash and bank balances 670,057 - - 670,
2021 150,332,672 1,352,102,015 - 1.502,434,687
More than one More than three Mot
Carrying value Upto one manth maenth upto three | meonths and upto b 2021
months one year yRar
2} Other financial ;
Liabilities liabilities i
Accrued and (Rupees)
other liabilities 36,009,366 - 36,009,366 - -
Lease liabilities 268,805,459 1,269,535 2,512,219 29,838,030 235,185,675 Liabilities e
304,814,825 1,268,535 38,521,585 29,838,030 235,185,675 Accrued and other liabilities 36,009,366 36,009,366
— e Lease liabilities 268,805,459 268,805,459
,814, 814,
344 Fi | instr by category
345 Operational risk
; Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
At fair value through ot‘;:: ::'“ “‘;::g::'e technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either intemnally within the Company or extemally
profit and loss ime at the Company's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those
i i ansing from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behaviour.
(Rupees) Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.
Assets The Company’s objective is lo manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage lo ils
Long-term loans - secured 42,614 - - 42614 reputation with achieving its investment abjective of generating returns for investors.
Balances due from funds under
management - related parties 124,610,226 - - 124,610,226 The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the board
Loans Iand advances - secured 317,533 £ i 317,533 of directors. This responsibility encompasses the confrols in the following areas:
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables 82,746,146 . . 82,746,146
Other financial assets - investments - 1,159,071,682 - 1,159,071,682
Cash and bank balances 606,995 - 606,995

208,323,514 1,159.,071,682

1,367,395,196
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requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibility;
requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

documentation of controls and procedures;

requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures o address the risks identified;

ethical and business standards; and

risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

35, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER ASSETS

IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurement where such measurements are required as permitted by other IFRSs. It
defines fair value as the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price),

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the balance sheet
date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not significantly differant from book
value.

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is
based on:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3:  Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The table shown below analysis the financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

2022
Level 2 l Level 3
(Rupees)

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Units of mutual funds -

related parties - 1,034,071,682 - 1,034,071,682
Term finance certificate - - 125,000,000 125,000,000

- 1,034,071,682 125,000,000 1,159,071,682

2021
Level 1 vel 2 Total

Financial assets classified as at fair
value through profit or loss

held-for-trading
Units of mutual funds -
related parties - 1,227,102,015 - 1,227,102,015
Term finance certificate - - 125,000,000 125,000,000
- 1,227,102,015 125,000,000 1,352,102,015
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351 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2:

34.1.1 Fair values of investment in mutual funds are measured on the basis of closing net asset value as announced
by the respective Asset Management Company.

35.2 During the year ended December 31, 2022, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfer into and out of level 3 fair value measurements.

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong credit rating
and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and potential investment
projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce the cost of capital.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. In
order lo maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

37. GENERAL

37.1  Number of employees at the end of the year

85 90

Average number of employees during the year
85 97

37.2 These financial statements were authorised for issued on February 24, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

37.3 Incompliance of the NBFC Rules read with SRO 1002(1)/2015 dated October 15, 2015 of SECP, the management
would like to report that the Company has sufficient insurance coverage from an insurance company, rated AA++ by
a rating agency registered with the Commission, against financial losses thal may be caused as a result of gross
negligence of its employees.

37.4 Corresponding figures have been reclassified / re-arranged wherever necessary to facilitate comparison in the
presentation in the current year. However, there are no material reclassification / re-arrangement to report.

37.5 The figures in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

o ofhme S

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED AND ITS
DISTRIBUTION

Wealth Generated

Management Remuneration & Commission 177,989 157,826

Investment & all other income 64,235 (80,333)
242,224 77,493

Manag & other expens (96,062) (74,233)
146,162 3,260

Wealth Distributed

To employees 193,187 183,307

To government 7.544 11,340
200,731 194,647

To shareholders

Cash dividend - -
To providers of financial capital as financial cost 27,900 34,400

To society as donation - -

Retained in business
Depreciation & amortization ‘ 66,582 ‘ 74,289

Retained profiti(loss) (149,051) (300,076)
(82,469) (225,787)
146,162 3,260

-34%

16% i

M ToEmpoyess W Donation

W ToEmplyess W Donation

B To Government W Depreciation and Arorization B To Government W Depreciation and Amorization

W Cash Dividend W Relained Proft B Cash Dwidend W Relsined Proft

W Farance Cost W Fnance Cost
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

Balanca Sheet

Mo - Cument Assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

L and

Longrlenminvestent
Long term investmeant in & subsidiary
Tatal Non Current Assets.

Curment Assets

Laars and advances - consdared goad

Diepeeits, prapayments and other receivables

Other firancal essets - investmants
Tawation - net

Cash and barik balancas

Total Current Assets

Total Assels

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves

Share Capital

Hfusthorised caphal

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Unagpropriated profit

Capiial repurchase reserve-account

U

Surpus on revaluation of fised assets - net

LIABILITIES

Mo - Currant Liabilities
Defermed Liabilties

Lang-4em financing

Digferred taxalion

Leasa iabifies

Total Non-Current Lisbilities.

Current Liablities
Accred and other liadlites
Unclamad dividend

Dividend Payabie

Curment maturity of ang term finencing
Current malurity of keas babiltes
Total Currant Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

IT56E5 M6 399413 4TEO09 4861 IB1E -193%  -145%  -162% 9% TN 0%
B47 08 122 1532 1632 847 A12%  -102%  -22% A% RTh 435
215 145 235 33 43 43 4B0%  354%  335% RSN DE% 408N
.27 . - - . = 100.0% D% 0o 0.0% 0% 0.0%

- - 3750 ars0 3750 ITE - -1000% 0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

ZBASL 35360 4E198 53230 54333 4347 105% 2% A52% 0% 250% 7%

12461 0596 10850 12307 M2m 102 18.5% Al -10% 1% 24% A
23 336 3 347 244 561 2B3%  145% 4% BI0%  GBEEN  1MEN

9735 G666 56615 951 6046 7200 TIE% Q1% 4%% -1E%  -EF 1546%

115907 135210 158520 174185 160404 18TREE  -MI% -4Tw A0% BE%  -ME%  -21.3%

9158 BTS84 BAdT #7176 8952 BAG4 41% 17% 19% 8% 1% Z2%

gl

841 1344 ZED 1550 BAO%  1TT2% DA% AW MAth 34N
185441 202073 189240 216765 Ba%  20% &% 3% @I 8%
A0T% -139% 0% 52%  63%

00250000 250000  2500.00 250000 2,500.00 0.0% 00% 00  00%  00%  00%

B17.74

B17.74

6774 BT BT B01LTE 0% 0.0% 00 -H8% [ 0.0%

TITES BEETI 116724 119705 75174 70084 -16E%  -234% -A0%  BA2% 7% 0.1%

- 1962 1R - - -1000% 0% 0.0%

- 2H05 61D - - A00% X% 4TE%

17389 183.06 . - = CA000% S0 45%

135540 150445 1,774.90x 181479 215068 234500 D% 52% 2% A5E% BaI% 5%

130 - - - - - - - - -
7550 - - - - - - - - -
1558 - - - B

Zl3p 610 MOV AN 3460 3ol Ath  B6% U6 6M% SO -
HITS 5A8 WA 264M MB4 1000 A% 302%  NZ%  6eEh H4% e

17348 W6TH8 16671 18553 21557 2% 3% % 05%  -213% 0.5% ALY
4 4% G 2% 2% S DS 48%  TAS%  00% i .
- - - 70 - - - - 1000 00 - -
| - - - - 10005 - 0% 0% * ]

e NG 4B MM 1R % 530% 0% 26T% 674N .

M52 19327 48233 25041 20502  -74%  269% 5A%  006%  BS% 38

41639 48041 530.30 T4T24 28505 25412 A3.3% Ad%  -2E0%  16L1% 12.2%  ATT%
196486 230520 256203 249573 259042 DT 39%  00%  52% 6% 454N

17483 20141 19953 20A0T 1% 100% 32%  0O%  2B% AN
410 G06 432 B2 SM4%  BBE%  G4B%  10GTH  4TE% 4
15472 10888 1B4S2 404D -TITE%  -16T70% A0B%  -0.5% NI SN
(385 [(B695) (B3N7) AOZN)  24%  TE% A% 90% B\ -4
[281) (2B} (BB03) (TR06) G2TS%  BAS%  BA4%  4TH 2% .

- S{18) (13 D0 00%  O0% -000% 2B 40
500 (B4Z) (33 (023 8% 7% 5% 10M4S% 1083% 1567
1482 8820 I 3 B43% BBI%  AAP% 0% 2% 41%

RLCT ]
300 047
1881 (104.99)
[318.62) (32678
@) 5
[5904) (27808)  (Z81) [10877) 1748 3588  430% 08245% DA% JBI% 5% S04%
2780}  [3440)
4543 D484
4151 88Ty

(2299) (50.00) 5TO1 6750 500% 11558%  B10% 2035%  55% 476N
Fh

T H94%

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 135 "/}




VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Balance Sheet
Nan - Gurrent Assets

Property and equipment
Intargiie agsess

Long-tesm | iered

Lnr;-b’mimeshnml
Leng temn investment in a subsidiany
Total Non Current Assets

Currant assots

Balances dus from funds under managament -
e parlies

Loans and advances - considered good

Depasits, prepaymeants and ofar receivablas

DOter financial assats - imasiments

Taeation - net

(Cash and bank balancos

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shara Capital and Ressrves

Share Capital
Aulhrisad capital

Iszued, subscribed and paid-uo capdal

Urappropriaied peofit

Capital mpurchase reserve aocount

Urrealisad apprecialion on remeasuramant of
“avaiable-for-sale” financial assess - net

Surplus on revaluation of fixed essets - net

LIABILITIES

Non - Cument Lisbiifies
Deferred Liakiities
Long-term firancing

Defamed taxafion

Lease labilties

Tetal Non Current Liablities

Current Lizbilities

Accried and ofher fiabiliSas
Urcdaimed diddend

Dividand Payable

Currant maturity o long farm fnancing
Curment maturity of lease labiktes
Tetal Current Liakilities

Tokal Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabllities

Profit & Less Aceount
Rermunerafions Income
Comnimigsion incoms
Investment Ircome
Adrmiresirati & Markeling experise
Seling & distibulion expenses
{Operating profiti{loss)

Oer expenses

Financal charnges.

Ofer income

Profit|Loss) before tax
Tanation - net
Profit![Loss) for the year
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[ 2022 | 2021 | 2020 | 2019 | 2018 | 2017 |
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

2022 | 2021 | 2020 | 2019 | 2018 | 2017 ]

Overall Profitability

Profit/|Loss) Before Tax / Management Remuneration (%)
Profit/(Loss) After Tax / Management Remuneration (%)
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax / Total Revenues (%]
Profit/{Loss) After Tax / Total Revenues (%)

Return to Shareholders

Return on equity (%)

Return on Equity - Profit/(Loss) before tax (%)
Return on Equity - Profit(Loss) after tax (%)
Return on Total Assets (%)

Eamings/(Loss) Per Share (Rs.)

Dividend Payout (Rs.)

Dividend Yield (%)

Dividend Cover (times)

P/E Ratio (Times)

Market Value per share

Earnings Growth (%)

Performance/Liguidity

Current Ratio [Times)

Cash / Current Liabilities (%)

Tolal Assets Tumover (Times)

Fixed Assets Turnover (Times)

Equity ( Total Assets (Shareholders Funds ratio) (%)
Debt to Equity - Book Value (%)

Paid Up Capital / Total Assets (%)

Return On Capital Employed (%)

-81.72%
-86.08%
-71.91%
-15.74%

(1042)

7.37%

6.99%
(7.94)
(241)
(539)
13.00

857
6.06%
010
070
76.50%
30.72%
34.87%
(0.08)

-186.49%
-193.81%
-546.33%
-567.79%

{18.30)
6.34%
6.10%
(13.99)

(4.86)

(2.57)
12,50

972
10.66%
0.02
015
75.80%
31.93%
31.12%
(0.17)

-13.29%
-23.01%

-6.89%
-11.93%

(2.22)
9.64%
557%
(1.64)
(0.64)

(36.08)
2325

11.16
4.88%
0.14
0.81
77.00%
29.88%
26.80%
{0.02)

-29.68%

-43.59%

-17.50%
-25.70%

(4.57)
7.75%
5.27%

(347)

(1.40)

4
24.66%

(0.35)
(11.56)

16.21
-308%

1096
279%
013
0569
T0.83%
M.47%
24.11%
(0.04)

29.22%
21.39%
14.68%
10.74%

2.02
3.54%
4.83%

1.66

0.52

16.37
8.00
30%

7.56
9.19%
0.15
077
88.30%
14.42%
3291%
0.02

34.03%
16.24%
19.13%

9.13%

1.36
2.02%
4.22%

114

040

2339
940
-84%

9.28
6.61%
012
09
90.22%
11.75%
30.85%
001
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - DIRECT METHOD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 | 2021 |

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Remuneration & Commission from funds under management 158,536,034 162,170,732

Payments to employees, suppliers and others (301,257,963 )| | (244,144,895)
Taxes paid (11,189,422 (9.815,871)
Net cash used in operating activities (153,911,351) (91,790,034)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment made

(6,528,827 ,696)| ((1,972,704,001)

Proceeds from sale of investments 6,711,365,080 | | 2,079,330,844
Capital expenditure incurred (3.639,541) (23,024,540)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 30,990,000 25,644 400
Amalgamation of wholly owned subsidiary company = 37,500,000
Dividends received 8,345,839 8,199,539
Return on bank deposits 2,033,919 1,957,860
Return on debt securities 18,625,685 11,428,554
Net cash used in financing activities 238,893,286 168,332,656

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Unclaimed dividend paid (23,235) (237,074)
Long term loan repaid to bank (40,092,979) (40,092,879)
Financial charges paid (27,899,684 (31,259,651)
Payment against lease liability (30,822,504)| | (17.777.527)
Net cash used in financing activities (98,838,402) (89,367,231)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (13,856 467 ) (12,824,809)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 26,145,280 9,433,434
Transfer upon merger - 29,536 455
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 12,288,813 26,145,280
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SHARE PRICE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

JSIL's market share price is predominantly impacted by the company’s financial and operational performance; in
addition to various external factors including the economic and political environment of the Country, Governmental
policies, stakeholders’ sentiments, and macro-economic indicators, etc.

/ Market Share Price Sensitivity (Rs/Share) \‘
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Factors that can influence the share price of JS Investments Limited are given below:
1. Economic Outlook

The market share price is directly linked to the overall economic outlook. A strong outlook results in rising market prices
whereas an uncertain economic outlook begets weak market prices.

2. Company Performance
The Company's profitability and eamings per share (EPS) have a direct bearing on its market share price.
3. Investor Sentiment

Investor sentiment can cause the overall market to go up or down, consequently, stock prices rise or fall. The general
direction that the stock market takes can affect the market share price.

4. Goodwill

The market share price can also vary with the investor sentiments towards the Company which changes in response to
the news and events.

5. Regulations and Government Policies
The market share price is also sensitive to any changes in policies by the Government or regulatory authorities.
6. Dividend Announcements

The dividend policy measures (dividend yield and payout ratio) have a significant impact on share price volatility. An
announcement of a dividend may be favorable or unfavorable depending upon the company's future growth prospects.

7. Interest Rate

The shape of the yield curve serves as a leading economic indicator where an inversion signals an economic downturn.
High-interest rates will affect the cost of debt resulting in reduced margins in the manufacturing sector affecting broader
equity markets. However, a high-interest rate environment bodes well for the fixed-income asset class. Moreover,
interest rates have no direct correlation with alternate investment classes. In a nutshell, an upward-sloping yield curve
is neutral for the financial sector whereas inversion leads to a slowdown, thus hurt the share price.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the Twenty-Eighth (28th) Annual General Meeting of the members of JS Investments Limited,
(the "Company") will be held at 10:30 a.m. on Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 15th Floor, The Centre, Saddar, Karachi, by
physical presence, as well as via Zoom video-conferencing, to fransact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2022, together with the Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report.

.4 To appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration. The members are hereby notified that the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the re-appointment of retiring auditors, Messrs KPMG
Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, who being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3. To ratify and approve balances and the transactions carried out by the Company and the Collective Investment
Schemes (Funds) under its management in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis with JS Bank
Limited (Related Party) as at and during the financial year ended December 31, 2022, under the authority of the
special resolution passed by the members in the last annual general meeting held on April 11, 2022,

4. To authorize the Chief Executive of the Company o approve all transactions carried out or to be carried out with
Related Parties in the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis till the next Annual General Meeting.

Aftached to this Notice is a statement of material facts in relation to the aforesaid special business, as required
under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017. The said statement also contains the text of the special resolutions
to be passed in this regard. The notice of the meeting as well as the statement has also been placed on the Company's
website www.jsil.com

By Order of the Board

VY g
L] _/ !

Muhammad Khawar Igbal
Karachi: March 21, 2023 COO & Company Secretary

Notes:

1. The Company, in accordance with Section 223(7) of the Companies Act 2017, has placed the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022, along with the Audilors’ and Direclors' Reports thereon and
Chairman’s Review Report on its website www.jsil.com

2. The Share Transfer Bocks of the Company shall remain closed from April 6, 2023, to April 12, 2023 (both days
inclusive) for determining of shareholders for attending and voting at the General Meeting.

3 Physical transfers and deposit requests under Central Depository System received at the close of business on April
5. 2023 by the Company's Registrar i.e. COC Share Registrar Services Limited, COC House, 89 — B, Block ‘B',
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi will be treated in time for the purpose of attending and voting at the
meeting.

4. Amember of the Company entitied to attend and vote may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and

vote instead of him/her. Proxies must be received at the Reagistered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the time of the meeting.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

5. Beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)
andfor their proxies will have to follow the following guidelines as laid down by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan:

A.  PARTICIPATION IN THE 28TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) PROCEEDINGS VIA VIDEO LINK

a) In the light of the clarification Issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for ensuring the
participation of members in a general meeting through electronic means as a regular feature the Company has also
provided the facility for attending the meeting via video link to its shareholders.

b} Inthis regard, the shareholders who are interested to participate in the meeting through the video link are requested
to email the following information with the subject “Registration for the AGM of JSIL” at the email address
*shareholders@jsil.com”. Zoom link will be shared with only those shareholders from whom all required particulars
are received at the given email address not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the AGM. The shareholders
can also provide their comments and guestions relating to agenda items of the AGM on email at shareholders@ijsil.com

Sr. No. MName Mobile Number Email Address

| | |
¢)  The members who intend to attend and participate physically in the AGM of the Company will be allowed to participate
keeping in view of the COVID-19-related SOPs issued by the Provincial and/or Federal Government. The Company
will follow the best practices and comply with the instructions of the Government and SECP to ensure protective
measures are in place for the well-being of its members.

Folio/CDS Account
Numbar CNIC No.

d)  Inthe case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as
per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original Passport
along with Participant ID number and the account number at the time of attending the Meeting.

e) Inthe case of a corporate entity, the Board's resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee
shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

B. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES

a) Inthe case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as
per the CDC Regulations shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements.

b)  The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses, and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned
on the form.

c}  Aftested copies of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the passport of bene—ficial owners and the
proxy shall be fumnished with the proxy form

d)  The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting

&)  Inthe case of a corporate entity, the Board's resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

c.

APPLICABILITY OF POSTAL BALLOT REGULATIONS

Procedure for E-Voting

In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018, for the purpose of approval of any special
agenda item at the AGM, members will be allowed to exercise their vote through postal balloti.e., by post or e-voting,
in the manner and subject to conditions contained in the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the Bank who have their valid
CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in the register of members of the Bank by the close
of business on April 5, 2023,

The web address. login details, and password, will be communicated to members via email. The security codes will
be communicated to members through SMS from the web portal of CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (being
the e-voting service provider).

Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through electranic signature
or authentication for login.

Members shall cast vote online at any time from April 8, 2023, 9:00 am to April 11, 2023. Voting shall close on April
11 2023, at 5:00 pm. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by a Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change
it subsequently.

Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot

Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018 (“Regulations, 2018"), for the purpose of election of directors
and for any other agenda item subject to the requirements of Section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017,
members will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot, that is voting by post, in accordance
with the requirements and procedure contained in the aforesaid Regulations.

The members shall ensure that the duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with a copy of the Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through the post at the Company's registered
address, 18th floor, The Centre, Plot No. 28, SB-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi, or email at chairman@jsil.com
one day before the AGM on April 11, 2023, during working hours. The signature on the Ballot Paper shall match
with signature on the CNIC.

Shareholders are requested to notify immediately of any change in their address to the

Computerized National Identity Card ("CNIC") Shareholders are requested to provide immediately if not already
provided, a copy of their valid CNIC to the Company’s Independent Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar
Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block "B", 5.M.C.H.8, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi. A legible scanned copy
of the same can also be forwarded at shareholders@jsil.com along with the folio number and updated address for
correspondence.

Payment of cash dividend through electronic mode: The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017
provide that any cash dividend declared by a listed company must be paid through electronic mode directly into the
bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Accordingly, the shareholders of the Company are requested
to provide an electronic dividend mandate on E-Dividend Form available on the Company’s website (www.jsil.com)
enabling the Company to credit their future cash dividends, if any, directly to their designated bank accounts.
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8. Unclaimed Dividend and Bonus Shares: Shareholders, who for any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus
shares or did not collect their physical share, if any, are advised to contact our Share Registrar Mis CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, to collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any.

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such
dividends and shares outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due and payable shall be deposited
1o the credit of the Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, shall be delivered to
the SECP.

9. Electronic Transmission of Annual Financial Statements and Notices (Optional): In pursuance of the directions given
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under S.R.0 787 (12014, the SECP has allowed
companies to circulate annual Audited Financial Statements, along with the notice of Annual General Meating
(Motice) to its members through e-mail subject to compliance with the conditions outlined in the referred SRO of
SECP.

The transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements with Notice to members through e-mail shall be considered
in compliance with the relevant requirements of Sections 223 and 233 of the Companies Act 2017, subject to certain
conditions, prescribed in the said notification.

For the convenience of its Shareholders, the Company has placed a Standard Request Form on the Company’s
website (www.jsil.com), so that the members may use it to communicate their e-mail address and consent for
electronic transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice thereon. Please ensure that your email
account has sufficient rights and space available to receive such an email that may be greater than 1 MB in size.

10. SECP through its SRO 407(1)/2016, dated May 31, 2016, and Section 223 (6) has allowed companies to circulate
the annual balance sheet, profit, and loss account, Auditors’ Report, and Directors’ Report, etc. (*Annual Audited
Accounts”) to its members through digital recording devices such as CD/DVD/USE at their registered addresses.
In view of the above, the Company has sent its Annual Report, 2022 to its shareholders in the form of CD (Digital
Disc). Any member requiring a printed copy of the Annual Report, 2022 may send a request using a Standard
Request Form placed on Company’s website.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business proposed to be transacted at
the annual general meeting.

Agenda Iltem No. 3 of the Notice — Ratification / Approval of Transactions carried out with related parties
during the year ended December 31, 2022,

The Company and Funds under its management carmried out transactions as detailed in the below resolution with
JS Bank Limited in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis and under the authority of the special
resolution of the members as approved by them during the last annual general meeting held on April 11, 2022, All
such transactions and balances appearing in the balance shest are presented before the Board of Directors for
their review and consideration on the recommendation of the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis pursuant to
Clause 15 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Govemnance) Regulations, 2019 and Regulation 5 of Companies
(Related Party Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

However, since the majority of the Company’s Directors were considered interested in the transactions carried out
with JS Bank Limited as mentioned in the below resolution, therefore, these transactions conducted by the Company
and Funds under its management with JS Bank Limited during the calendar year ended December 31, 2022, are
being placed before the shareholders for their consideration and approval. These transactions with the related party
are entered in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis and have been duly cleared by the Audit
Committee of JSIL.

The following resolution is proposed to be passed as Special Resolution with or without any modification
“Resolved that following transactions carried out by the Company and Funds under its management in the ordinary

course of business with JS Bank Limited during the financial year ended December 31, 2022, be and are hereby
ratified, approved and confirmed.

Entity |Rent paid Rent Bank Return of Amount paid Other
receivable | balances | bank deposits under receivables
Refinancing
Scheme for
Salaries &
Wages, markup,
and
bank charges
JS 2,853,114 | 2,409,149 | 14,737,077 1,890,784 40,657,337 1,465,084
Investments
Limited
Fund Bank Balance/TDR | Mark up income Mark up
receivable

UNIT TRUST OF PAKISTAN 206,795,087 2,630,708 975,817
JS ISLAMIC FUND 2,718,683 - -
JS INCOME FUND 7.391,515 1,544,208 -
JS LARGE CAP. FUND 39,888,336 2,116,020 -
JS FUND OF FUNDS 2,815,813 662,782 31,297
JS GROWTH FUND 171,672,720 10,140,662 1,607,678
JS-PENSION SAVINGS FUND-EQUITY
SUB-FUND 77,856 68,893 -
JS PENSION SAVINGS FUND-MONEY
MARKET SUB-FUND 81 81 -
'JS CASH FUND 6,200,000 633,655 174,515
JS ISLAMIC INCOME FUND 2,248,804 - -
JS ISLAMIC HYBRID FUND OF
FUNDS-MUTANASIB 10,000 - -
JS MOMENTUM FACTOR- EXCHANGE
TRADED FUND 1,654,245 149,074 31,046
JS MICROFINANCE SECTOR FUND 2,657,758 616,773 70,448
JS RENTAI REIT 24,162,013 21,257 -
Total: 468,292,692 18,584,092 2,890,801
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Agenda Item No. 4 of the Notice — Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the approval of transactions

carried out and to be carried out with JS Bank Limited (related party) till the next A | General M g

The Company and funds under its management shall continue to carry out transactions with JS Bank Limited in the
ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis till the next Annual General Meeting. Such transactions shall
be ‘routine’ in nature and shall not involve any material or special deals or arrangements.

As our majority of the Directors of JSIL are considered interested in these transactions, therefore, these transactions
with JS Bank Limited (as a related party) have to be approved by the shareholders in terms of Section 208 of the
Companies Act, 2017, Clause 15 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and
Regulation 5 of Companies (Related Party Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018.

In order to ensure smooth business operations, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to
approve routine transactions to be carried out in the ordinary course of business on arm's length basis with related
parties as mentioned in the following special resoclutions (with or without modifi=cations) till next Annual General
Meeting, However, these transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next AGM for their
approval/ratification. Such a proposal has been cleared by the Audit Committee of JSIL.

“Resolved that the Chief Executive Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve transactions
to be carried out with JS Bank Limited in the ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis till the next Annual

General Meeting.

Resolved further that these transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting
for ratification/approval.”

The Interest of Directors:

The majority of the Directors are employees of JSBL and are interested to the extent of their shareholding in the
Company.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022 AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022
I S S ) pwy
508 1 to 100 7,800 Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their sp (s) and minor child
503 101 to 500 222735 MR. SULEMAN LALANI : 2 0.00
171 501 o 1000 161,818 MS. IFFAT ZEHRA MANKANI 1 500 0.00
209 1001 to 5000 549,180 MR. HASAN SHAHID 2 1.001 0.00
55 5001 to 10000 437,241 MR. MIRZA MUHAMMAD SADEED HASSAN BARLAS 1 500 0.00
r wo e T - B oo
13 15001 t 20000 243,755 : d
8 20001 tz 25000 142 600 MS. MEDIHA KAMAL AFSAR 1 500 0.00
3 25001 i 20000 82,000 MR. FAROOQ AHMED MALIK 1 500 0.00
2 3[}001 tD 35{}00 64'000 A, iated F ur |dl$l g al'ld fBlﬂth Pﬂﬂiﬂs
1 35001 to 40000 40,000
1 40001 to 45000 41,500 JS BANK LIMITED. 1 52236978 84 56
3 45001 to 50000 150,000 JAHANGIR SIDDIQUI & SONS LIMITED 1 5 0.00
i 50001 to 55000 53,500
1 65001 to 70000 66,500 Executives 2 1,001 0.00
3 70001 to 75000 219,822
1 80001 to 85000 82,500 NIT & ICP m = =
2 95001 to 100000 199,168
1 110001 to 115000 113,100 Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies, 1 19 0.00
1 115001 lo 120000 116,000 "
1 isst0i & {4666 130,000 Insurance Companies 1 5215 0.01
L ot to 1240000 140,000 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 2 3,782,500 6.12
1 170001 to 175000 171,500
2 180001 to 185000 365,059 General Public
1 200001 to 205000 202,000
1 205001 to 210000 208,500 a. Local 1468 5,331,191 8.63
1 245001 to 250000 250,000 b. Foreign - - -
1 295001 to 300000 300,000 Foreign Companies g 7 2
1 330001 to 335000 330,500 Others 28 413344 0.67
1 430001 o 435000 433,500 Totals 1513 61,774,256 100.00
1 475001 to 480000 480,000
| seon w s ssasom -
L B2235001 L B22400%) 52,250,978 JS BANK LIMITED. 1 52236978 84.56
1513 61,774,256
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FORM OF PROXY

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company Secretary,

JS Investments Limited

The Centre, 19th Floor, Plot No. 28,
SB - 5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar

Karachi - 74400.

We being member(s) of JS Investments Limited,
holding ordinary shares as per Registered Folio No. / GDC Alc No. (for members who have shares
in CDS) hareby appoint Mr. /Mrs. / Miss.
(Folie no. CDC Ale No.) or failing hm’hsr Mr /I Mrs. [ Miss,

(Folio no. CDC A/c No.)
being a member of the company, as my / our proxy to attend, act and vote for me /
us and my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on April 12, 2023, and/or any adjournment
thereof.

As witness my / our hand seal this day of 2023.

Sigred by

In the presence of

Witness 1 Witness 2

Name Name

Signature Signature

Address: Add

CNIC | Passport No. CNIC / Passport No.
ENNNECENRRNEEDE EEENECEERRERNER
Important:

1. A member of the Company entitied to attend and vote may appecint another member as his/her
proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. _

2. This proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the office of the Company 5'9;?“; Ll
situated at The Centre, 19th Floor, Plot No. 28, SB - 5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi Revehiis Stamp
not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting.

3. Mo person shall act as proxy unless he/she himseliherself is a member of the Company,
except that a Corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

4. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are Ths Siginatiis sfioold
deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered agree with the spacimen
invalid. registerad with the Company

5. Beneficial Owners of physical shares and the shares registered in the name of Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) andlor their proxy are required to produce their
original  CNIC or passport for identification pumposes at the tme of attending the meeting. The
form of proxy must be submitted within the stipulated time, duly witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses, and CNIC
numbers must be mentioned on the form, along with attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owner and the
proxy. In the case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted along with the proxy form.
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary

JS Investments Limited

The Centre, 19th Floor, Plot No. 28,
SB - 5, Abdullah Haroon Road,
Saddar, Karachi-74400.
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BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

JS Investment Limited

19th Floor, The Centre,

Plot No. 25, 5B-5, Abdullah Haroon Road,
Saddar Karachi, Pakistan.

www jsil.com

UAN: (+92-21) 111-222-626

For Poll at the Annual General Meeting

To be held on April 12, 2023 at 10:30 am
At 15th floor, The Centre, Plot No. 28. SB-5
Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi.

[Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly
filled in ballot paper may be sent: Chairman@jsil.com

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders
Registered Address

Number of shares held and folio number
CNIC Number (copy to be attached)
Additions! Information and enclosures (In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and Federal Government. )

Name of Authorized Signatory:
CNIC/Passport No.(in case of foreigner) of authorized
signatory — (copy to be attached)

liwe hereby exercise myfour vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying
my/our assent or dissent to the following resolutions by placing tick (v) mark in the appropriate box below;

5. No. Nature Resolved that and Description of resolutions IWe assent | I'We dissent
to the to the
Resolutions | Resolutions
(FOR) (AGAINST)
To ider, and if d d appropri to pass the following
T i as Special Resoluti , with or without modificati

01 Resolved that following transactions carried out by the Company and Funds under its
management in the ordinary course of business wilh JS Bank Limiled during the financial
year ended December 31, 2022, be and are hereby ralified, approved and confirmed.

Enity Rant Paid Rent Bank Retum of | Amount paid

raceivabla | balances bank undar
deposits | Refinancing
Scheme for
Salaries &
Wages,
markup, and
bank

receiveblas

charges

s
:_mesl?enns 2853114 2408148 | 14737077 | 1,880,784 | 40657337 1,065,064
imile

e
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Fund Bank Batance (TOR Mark up income Mark up receivable
UNIT TRUST OF
PAKISTAN 206,795,067 2,630,708 975817
J5 ISLAMIC FUND 2718683 = =
J5 INCOME FUND 7.331.515 1,544,206
JS LARGE CAP. FUND 306,388,336 2,11E,020 -
J5 FUND OF FUNDS 2815813 662,782 3
J5 GROWTH FUND TET2 T3 10,140,662 1,607,678
J5 PENSION
SAVINGS 6B,8%3 =
77,856 "
FUND-EQUITY
SUB-FUND
J5 PENSION
SAVINGS =
FUND-MONEY @ d
MARKET SUB-FUND
J5 CASH FUND £,200,000 33655 174,515
J5 ISLAMIC INCOME
FUND 2,248,604
J5 ISLAMIC HYBRID
FUND OF 0,000
FUNDS-MUTANASIE
J3 MOMENTUM
FACTOR: EXCHANGE | 1,554,245 149,074 31,046
TRADED FUND
J5 MICROFINANCE
SECTOR FUND 2,557,158 B16,773 70,448
J5 RENTAL REIT 24162013 21,257
02 “Resolved that the Chief E stive Officer of the Comp be and is hersby
authorized to approve transactions to be carried out with JS Bank Limited in the
ordinary course of business on arm's length basis till the next Annual Genaral
Meeting.
Resolved further that these transactions shall be placed before the shareholders
in the next Annual General Meeting for ratification /approval.”
MNOTES: Signature of
1. Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to the Chairman of JSIL at 19th Floor, shareholder{s)/Authorized
The Centre, Plot Mo. 28, SB-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi Signatory
(Email: chairman @jsil.com),
2. Copy of CNIC/! Passport No. (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with {in case of corporate entity, please
the postal ballot form. affix company stamp)
3. Postal ballot forms should reach the Chairman of JSIL within business hours
by or before April 11, 2023, Any postal ballot received after this date, will not
be considered for voting.
4. Signature on postal ballot should mateh with signaiure on CNIC! Passport Place:
No. {in case of foreigner).
5. Incomplete, unsigned, incormect, defaced, torm, mulilated, over written ballot
paper will ba rejected.
6. This postal Poll paper s also available for download from the website of JSIL | Date:
at www jsil.com. Shareholder may download the ballot paper from website or
use the same ballol paper published in newspapers.
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,
Subject: Conversion of all Physical shares in Book-Entry-Form

In order to ensure compliance with the provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and subsequent letter
No.CSD/ED/Misc/2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 of SECP addressed to all listed Companies on the captioned
subject. All Members who hold physical shares are hereby requested to make necessary arangements for conversion
of their physical shares into book-entry form in order to avail the following key benefits:

Physical share certificates may be lost, stolen or spoilt and their duplicate issuance is very cumber some activity.
Physical shares are not saleable in stock exchange and book-entry shares can instantly be traded/sold.

For transfer/sale of book-entry shares, there is no need of preparation and verification of transfer deeds.

Only book-entry shares can be pledged for any financing facility.

Shareholders held share in book-entry form could get instant credit of bonus and right shares entittements in CDS
Accounts.

6. Online access is allowed on book-entry shares kept in CDS Account for reviewing portfolio information and/or
obtaining any statementireport, as and when required by you.

fa T SRS N s

In order to convert physical shares into book-entry form you are requested to kindly follow the procedure provided hereunder.

1. Shareholder must open an account in CDS with any CDC Participant (Stock Broker) or with CDC Investors Account
Services (IAS).

2 Fill the necessary columns of Transfer Deed (TD) form available on the Company's website (www. jsil.com), sign,
aftach valid CNIC copy of yourself & witnessing person and get it verified by our Registrar before submission of
physical shares for conversion. If Transfer Deed already verified skip this ep.

3. Transfer duty is to be affixed @0.15% of the face value of shares on the reverse of transfer deed in form of share
transfer stamps.

4. Obtain prescribed Securities Deposit Form (SDF) from your respective CDC Participant or COC IAS Department
and fill and sign the same.

b Lodge original physical share certificates together with verified transfer deeds and Security Deposit Form to your
respective CDC Participant (Stock Broker) or CDC [AS Department.

6.  CDC Participant (Stock Broker) or CDC IAS Deposit Section initiates deposit request in CDS, on behalf of shareholder,
after receiving original share certificates and verified transfer deeds and signed Security Depaosit Form.

7. CDC Participant (Stock Broker) or CDC IAS Deposit Section sends physical share certificate, verified transfer deed
and Security Deposit Form (obtained after initiating deposit request in CDS) to the Share Registrar.

8. Share Registrar after verifying the documents and getting necessary endorsement from the Company will deposit
shares in CDS.

For any clarification in this regards please contact us or our share registrar at following contact details:

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com, Website: www.cdcsrsl.com
Contact Number: +92-21-111-111-500

JS Investments Limited

Email: info@jsil.com,

Website: www.jsil.com

Contact Number: +92-21-111-222-626

Yours Sincerely,

Muhammad Khawar Igbal
COO & Company Secretary
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JS INVESTMENTS OFFICES

19th Floor, The Centre, Ground Floor, No.25, Block -13, Office # 414, 4th Floor,
Plot No. 28, 58-5 Plot No. 1- 4, Usman Block, PSX Tower, Jinnah Avenue,
Abdullah Haroon road, Saddar, New Garden Town, Islamabad - North
Karachi - South Lahore - Central 051-2894423
021-111-222-626 042-383-020-94
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